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Corporate Information

[NAEHR
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Corporate Information (continued)

NEER (w2
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

ITEREREEENRR DM

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is pleased to announce the audited annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015
together with comparative figures. These annual
results have been reviewed by the Company’s audit
committee.

FINAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
recorded a turnover of HK$649,475,000,
representing an increase of HK$373,718,000 or
135.5% from HK$275,757,000 for the year 2014.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2015 amounted to
HK$202,867,000 (2014: profit of HK$13,036,000).
The increase in profit of HK$189,831,000 was
primarily attributable to, among other things,
profit generated from the property development
operations and the gain on fair value changes of
investments held for trading.

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2015 was HK$2.55 (2014: basic earnings per
share of HK$0.16).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of final
dividend of HK$0.10 per share for the year ended 31
March 2015 (the “Final Dividend”) (2014: HK$0.10
per share).

KEBBREBAER AR ([RQF])
B ([EEg])MARMART
REWBAG (5l [XNE@])EE
2015F3HA31A L F R 2 KEZEF
XEEREBET AE2FEECH
ARG EREEEEN-

EEEE

HE2015F3A31B ILFE K&
$% 15 & ¥ %8649,475,000/8 7T
#20149275,757,000/% JT & N
373,718,000/ 7£3¢135.5% °

HZ22015F3A31H ILFE AR A
A A& F £202,867,00078 7T
(20144F : 3% %13,036,0007%8 7T ) ° )i
A 12 11189,831,0008 70 ° = Z AR
(BB MEBRREBEE 2R
A ARBFEEEREZ AT EES
EAEZ WA

HZE2015F3A310 I FE G
R E K| A&2.55%8 70 (20144 : F X
KEFNO0A6/TT) ©

REIRE

EEEBREH E2015F3A31
HIEFE 2 RHAKESS0.10%E
T ([E&RERE]) (2014F : %
0.10%87T) °

4 Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEIFEEE AR A 7

Annual Report 2014/15 4F i



President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FTRERGEEREEENB®R DM =)

Dividend will be paid on 9 September 2015 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 26 August 2015.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed on
Wednesday, 26 August 2015. In order to qualify for
the Final Dividend, all share transfers documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 25 August
2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was principally engaged
in property investment, property development,
garment sourcing and export businesses, loan
financing and investment in securities.

(i) Property Investment

The Group has investment properties in Hong
Kong, Singapore and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

Turnover of the Group’s property rental for the
year under review was HK$74,199,000 (2014:
HK$63,433,000), an increase of HK$10,766,000
or 17% over the last year mainly due to
positive rental reversions in Hong Kong. The
Group’s investment properties comprise mainly
residential, commercial and industrial properties.
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As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s commercial
and residential rental properties in Hong Kong
and Singapore were leased 95.8% and 100%
respectively. The industrial rental properties
continued to maintain a high occupancy rate of
93.2%. The property management fee income
was HK$721,000 (2014: HK$547,000).

At the year end date, the Group based on
professional valuations accounted for a
decrease in fair value gain of investment
properties to HK$26,370,000 (2014:
HK$40,714,000).

On 30 April 2014, Easyknit Enterprises Holdings
Limited (“EE”), a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a provisional sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to
acquire a property situated at the ground floor,
No. 15 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong at a consideration of HK$236,800,000.
This transaction was approved by the
shareholders of EE in the special general
meeting of EE held on 18 June 2014 and the
completion of sale and purchase took place on
20 August 2014.

The Group has 8 blocks of factory premises and
4 blocks of dormitories with a total gross floor
areas of approximately 89,229 sg.m. in Huzhou,
PRC.

The Group regularly reviews the existing tenant
composition and seeks to enhance its optimum
mix. The Group also continues to replenish its
investment property portfolio by selecting and
locating prospective retail acquisition targets.
The Group believes that a well-balanced
portfolio provides a steady rental income and
a good potential for capital appreciation in the
long run.
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FRBEREEEINRRD N o)
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FEBEREEEITRRD N 2

(i) WEBR

(ii) Property Development

A residential project, namely PAXTON, at No.
311-313 Prince Edward Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong which offers about 49 units of
74,285 square feet gross floor area has been
formally launched with grand opening in July
2014. For the year ended 31 March 2015, the
total revenue derived from the property sales of
PAXTON was HK$394,448,000.

On 16 June 2014, Hansford International
Investment Limited (“Hansford”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a development agreement with an independent
third party for a joint redevelopment of a building
located at Nos. 301, 301A-C Prince Edward Road
West, Kowloon, Hong Kong (“Project 301”) of
which the Group is the registered owner of 9
out of 12 units and the independent third party
is the registered owner of the remaining 3 units.
The aggregate redevelopment cost is presently
estimated to be approximately HK$540 million.
The Group and the independent third party will
bear the cost and share the economic interests in
the joint redevelopment on a 75:25 basis. Details
of the joint redevelopment are set out in the
circular of the Company dated 4 July 2014.

For the reason of being more effective in the
administration and in better risk management,
the Group has undergone a group restructuring
to effect Hansford, as one of the developers of
Project 301, changed to Gold Asset Investment
Limited (“Gold Asset”) on 5 September 2014.
Both Hansford and Gold Asset are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The foundation works of Project 301 is now
underway.
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On 5 September 2014, Easyknit Properties
Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and EE entered into a sale
and purchase agreement in relation to the sale
and purchase of the sale share of Kingbest
Capital Holdings Limited (as supplemented by
an agreement entered into on 15 September
2014 by Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited
and EE, whereby EE will indirectly acquire the
site located at No. 14 and 16 Inverness Road,
Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong and
the sale loan at a consideration of HK$340
million). This transaction was approved by
the shareholders of EE in the special general
meeting of EE held on 20 October 2014 and the
completion of sale and purchase took place on
21 November 2014.

On 30 October 2014, EE entered into five
provisional sale and purchase agreements
with independent third parties to acquire the
properties situated at No. 18 and 20 Inverness
Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong at
an aggregate consideration and other related
expenses of HK$169,500,000. This transaction
was approved by the shareholders of EE in
the special general meeting of EE held on 12
January 2015 and the completion of sale and
purchase took place on 15 January 2015.

EE planned to redevelop No. 14, 16, 18 and
20 Inverness Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong (the “Inverness Road Project’).
The general building plan to redevelop the
Inverness Road Project has been submitted
to Buildings Department in January 2015. The
demolition works at No. 14 and 16 Inverness
Road has been completed and the demolition
works at No. 18 and 20 Inverness Road has also
commenced in May 2015.
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FRBEREEEINRRD N o)
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On 18 March 2015, EE entered into ten
provisional sale and purchase agreements with
independent third parties to acquire the ten
property units situated at 1st floor, 2nd floor,
3rd floor, 4th floor, 5th floor and the roof of No.
11 and 13 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong at an aggregate consideration and
the related expenses of HK$183,000,000. This
transaction was approved by the shareholders
of EE in the special general meeting of EE held
on 11 May 2015 and the completion of sale and
purchase took place on 17 June 2015.

(iii) Garment Sourcing and Export Businesses

For the year ended 31 March 2015, this segment
recorded a turnover of HK$172,082,000
(2014: HK$96,969,000) representing 77.5%
increase comparing with 2014. Cost of sales
for the year amounted to HK$155,172,000
(2014: HK$86,361,000) and the loss of this
business segment was HK$3,660,000 (2014:
HK$2,077,000).

(iv) Investment in Securities

The Group has maintained a portfolio of listed
equity securities in Hong Kong. For the year
ended 31 March 2015, this business segment
has recorded a profit of HK$126,573,000 (2014
HK$8,564,000).

President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ITREEEREERBNR®R D )

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its operation through internally
generated cash flow and bank borrowings. As
at 31 March 2015, the Group’s bank borrowings
amounted to HK$1,537,826,000 (2014:
HK$1,741,162,000). The gearing ratio of the Group,
calculated as a ratio of total borrowings to total
equity, for the year was 0.39 (2014: 0.51).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has net
current assets of HK$1,587,915,000 (2014:
HK$2,454,382,000). Current ratio was 2.5 (2014:
21.5). The bank balances and cash as at 31 March
2015 was HK$378,520,000 (2014: HK$601,139,000).

Capital Structure

During the year, there was no change to the share
capital of the Company. As at 31 March 2015,
the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 79,420,403 shares.

Charge on Group Assets

As at 31 March 2015, bank loans amounting to
HK$1,537,826,000 (2014: HK$1,741,162,000)
were secured by investment properties, properties
held for development for sale and deposit and
prepayments for a life insurance policy of the Group
having a net book value of HK$3,229,175,000 (2014:
HK$3,074,249,000).

10
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TREREEREEBNR®R D )

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are in
Hong Kong dollars, US Dollars, Singapore dollars
and Renminbi. During the year, the Group did
not have significant exposure to the fluctuation in
exchange rates and thus, no financial instrument
for hedging purposes was employed. The directors
considered the risk of exposure to the currency

fluctuation to be minimal.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

SMNEE R B o L B

REBZBWARTHIAET X
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R\ - Bt I EE R 2R T A
AR ERR AR A BRENE
Z B AR A o

EXARBREE

Interest in Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited

(i) Conversion of 2014 Convertible Note of EE

On 16 January 2014, the Company through its
wholly owned subsidiary, Goodco Development
Limited, subscribed 2% coupon rate convertible
note in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$100,000,000 issued by EE (“EE 2014
Convertible Note”), which is convertible into
ordinary shares of EE (“EE Share(s)”) during the
five-year period commencing from 27 March
2014.

On 3 April 2014, the EE 2014 Convertible Note
in the principal amount of HK$20,000,000 was
converted to 29,411,764 EE Shares at the then
conversion price of HK$0.68 per EE Share.

On 29 August 2014, the EE 2014 Convertible
Note in the principal amount of HK$60,000,000
was converted to 93,457,943 EE Shares at
the then conversion price of HK$0.642 per EE
Share.
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As at the date of this report, the outstanding
principal amount of the EE 2014 Convertible
Note is HK$20,000,000, which is convertible into
EE Shares at the prevailing conversion price of
HK$10.65 per EE Share (subject to adjustment).

(i) Deemed Disposal of Interests in EE

Upon the completion of placing of 65,200,000
new EE Shares by EE to independent investors
on 18 June 2014, the Group’s interests in EE
was diluted from 42.02% to 35.02%. Therefore,
such placing was treated as a deemed disposal
of the interests in EE by the Group.

On 22 August 2014, the Group’s interest in EE
was further diluted from 35.02% to 29.20%
upon the completion of placing of 78,000,000
new EE Shares by EE to independent investors.
As a result, such placing was treated as a
deemed disposal of the interests in EE by the
Group.

(iif) Subscriptions of Rights Shares of EE

On 5 September 2014, the Group has
undertaken to EE and the underwriter on the
subscription of the rights shares of EE for a total
of 184,361,096 rights shares which were allotted
and taken up in full on 14 November 2014, the
subscription cost amounted to approximately
HK$129,053,000.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEIFEEBE AR A 7
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TREEEREEBNR®R DM o)

On 2 February 2015, the Group has undertaken
to EE and the underwriter on the subscription of
the rights shares of EE for a total of 207,406,220
rights shares which were allotted and taken up
in full on 22 April 2015, the subscription cost
amounted to approximately HK$134,814,000.

The Group did not apply any excess rights
shares in the above rights issues. Details of the
subscriptions of rights shares were set out in the
Company’s circular dated 26 September 2014
and 2 March 2015, respectively.

As at 31 March 2015, the Company, through its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Landmark Profits
Limited and Goodco Development Limited, was
interested in 10,370,311 EE Shares, representing
approximately 40.96% of the issued share
capital of EE. EE was a subsidiary of the
Company as at 31 March 2015.

Disposal of Kingbest Capital Holdings Limited

On 5 September 2014, EE and Easyknit Properties
Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement in relation to the sale and purchase of
the sale share of Kingbest Capital Holdings Limited
(as supplemented by an agreement entered into on
15 September 2014 by EE and Easyknit Properties
Holdings Limited, whereby EE will indirectly acquire
the site located at No. 14 and 16 Inverness Road,
Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong and the sale
loan at a consideration of HK$340 million). The
shareholders’ approval of the resolution relating
to the disposal has been obtained in the special
general meeting of the Company held on 20
October 2014. The disposal has been completed on
21 November 2014 and Kingbest Capital Holdings
Limited becomes a subsidiary of EE.
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Save as disclosed above, the Group had no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries
or associated companies during the year ended 31
March 2015.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2015 (2014: nil).

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group spent HK$624,000 (2014:
HK$21,000) on the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has capital
commitments of HK$8,669,000 (2014:
HK$24,356,000).

Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2015, the gain arising on changes
of fair value of investment properties decreased by
35.2% or HK$14,344,000 to HK$26,370,000 (2014:
gain of HK$40,714,000).

Finance Costs
Finance costs was HK$45,042,000, increased

by HK$30,684,000 or 213.7% for the year from
HK$14,358,000 in 2014.

14

Annual Report 2014/15 4

Br E > pritioh - B, E=2015F3 H31H
IHEE AEEUVEEBHBE AR
B NA) 2 BRI E -

HAREE

201593 A31 8 » 4N & & 17 £ (- {r]
BEANAEE (2014F : &) -

NGRS

RENR - AN&E B B 8) A 4624,0007%8
7C (20144 : 21,0008 T ) REEE W
¥ BB MR-

BAREE

MR2015F3A31H KREEH 7 B
#E 58,669,000 T (20144 -
24,356,0005% 7T, ) °

REVMERZNATESS

MR2015F3A31H REDEZ A
FEEEE A 2 W R 35.2%
14,344,000/% T £26,370,000/% 7T
(20144 : Y£2540,714,000/ 7T ) °

B WA
® & Bk AN A45,042,0005 ot 0 AH EE

201445 14,358,000/ JT * & A& N
30,684,000/% 7T.5213.7% °

Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEIFEEE AR A 7



President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TREREEREEBNR®R D )

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had a total of
57 employees (2014: 56 employees). Staff costs
(including directors’ emoluments) amounted to
HK$31,394,000 for the year under review (2014:
HK$47,143,000). The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience
and prevailing industry practice. The Group has
set out the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for the Hong Kong’s employees and has made
contributions to the state-sponsored pension
scheme operated by the PRC government for the
PRC employees. The Group has two share option
schemes to motivate employees.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

() On 26 May 2015, Cherry Sky Investments
Limited (“Cherry Sky”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of EE, as lender, entered into a facility
letter with the borrower, pursuant to which
Cherry Sky has conditionally agreed to lend an
interest bearing loan upto HK$70,000,000 to
the borrower for a period of 12 months from
the drawdown date. The above loan is secured
by share charge and personal guarantee. The
loan is used by the borrower exclusively for
repayment of its certain indebtedness of the
borrower and the balance for lending to the
guarantor.
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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(i)

(i)

10

On 12 June 2015, EE completed the issue of a
2% coupon rate convertible note (the “EE 2015
Convertible Note”) in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$86,000,000 with the maturity date
on 12 June 2017 to an independent third party.
The EE 2015 Convertible Note is convertible
into ordinary shares of EE at any time within
a period of 2 years following the date of issue
at the initial conversion price of HK$0.85 per
conversion share (subject to adjustment). Upon
the completion of the issue of the EE 2015
Convertible Note on 12 June 2015, EE ceased
to be a subsidiary of the Group and the financial
position and results of EE are deconsolidated
into those of the Group. EE is now accounted for
an associate of the Group.

On 10 June 2015, Charming Flash Limited
(“Charming Flash”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, as lender, entered into a loan
agreement with the borrower, pursuant to which
Charming Flash has conditionally agreed to lend
an interest bearing loan HK$185,000,000 to the
borrower for a period of 12 months from the
drawdown date. The above loan is secured by
share charges and guarantee. The loan is used
by the borrower exclusively for repayment of
its certain indebtedness and general working
capital.
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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PROSPECTS

Last year, the economic growth in Hong Kong was
moderate with steady gross domestic product and
export rate, low unemployment and inflation rate.
At the same time, the retail sales growth dropped
significantly as the local consumption demand and
tourist spending weakened. But under the support
of the favorable policies launched by the central
government such as the Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect and the proposed Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Stock Connect, it is expected that Hong Kong
economy will remain stable.

Following the release of depressed demand from
end users, the local property market has been
performing well since second quarter of 2014.
Meanwhile, persistent property cooling measures
continuously affects the local property market. In
order to curb to home prices, tightening measures
on the mortgage requirements has been launched
in February 2015, which is expected to have short
term impacts on the small-to-medium end of
secondary residential property market. But due to
the solid end user demand for small-to-medium
sized units and continuing formation of new
households, the Group is still optimistic about the
local property market.

The Group is dedicated to deliver excellence quality
with high quality developments. PAXTON, the key
project for 2014/15, realizes our core value which
has been well recognized by customers. PAXTON
achieved satisfactory sales since its initial launch in
July 2014. The Group is confident in the sales of this
project in 2015/16.
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The foundation works at No. 301, 301A-C Prince
Edward Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong is now
underway. Such project is expected to be launched
in the year 2017.

The influx of capital from China after the Easter
Holiday in April 2015 following implementation of the
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect has boosted
investment activities in the Hong Kong stock market.
Another mutual market access programme, the
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, expected to
be implemented in 2015, will present another wave
of new stimulus to the market. The Group will keep
on optimizing the securities investment portfolio and
adjust its investment strategy in order to secure the
greatest return through grasping the benefit of the
mutual market access programmes.

The Group are committed to deliver on the strategy
of focusing on core businesses to generate
sustainable returns and maximize shareholders
wealth.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
sincere gratitude to our staff and fellow directors
for their contribution to the Group’s development
and cordial thanks to the continuing support of
our customers, suppliers, business associates and
shareholders.

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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Biographical Details of Directors

EECEE

MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kwong, aged 72, is an executive director,
president, chief executive officer and authorised
representative of the Company and chairman of
the Executive Committee. He is also an executive
director, chairman, chief executive officer and
authorised representative, and chairman of the
Executive Committee of Easyknit Enterprises
Holdings Limited (“Easyknit Enterprises”). Mr.
Kwong graduated from The University of Hong
Kong in 1965 and was admitted as Barrister-at-
Law in the United Kingdom in 1970 and in Hong
Kong in 1973 respectively. He has over 30 years of
experience in the legal field. He serves as director of
various subsidiaries of the Company and Easyknit
Enterprises. In 2007, Mr. Kwong was appointed
as president and chief executive officer of the
Company.

MS. LUI YUK CHU
Vice President

Ms. Lui, aged 57, is a co-founder of the Group,
an executive director and vice president of
the Company and a member of the Executive
Committee. She is also an executive director
and deputy chairman, and a member of the
Executive Committee of Easyknit Enterprises. Ms.
Lui has been involved in the textiles industry for
over 30 years and has extensive experience in
design, manufacturing, marketing and distribution
of apparel. She serves as director of various
subsidiaries of the Company and Easyknit
Enterprises. Ms. Lui was appointed to the Board as
an executive director in 1994. In 2006, Ms. Lui was
appointed as vice president. Ms. Lui is the wife of
Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the co-founder of the Group and
substantial shareholder of the Company. She is also
the mother of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, an executive
director of the Company. Ms. Lui is also the paternal
sister-in-law of Mr. Lai Law Kau, a non-executive
director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

MS. KOON HO YAN CANDY

Ms. Koon, aged 30, is an executive director and
authorised representative of the Company and
is a member of the Executive Committee since
2010. She is also an executive director, authorised
representative and a member of the Executive
Committee of Easyknit Enterprises. Ms. Koon
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics
and Politics from the University of Durham, England
in 2007. She also received her Bachelor of Laws
degree and Legal Practice Course qualification in
2009 from the College of Law, England. Ms. Koon
is the daughter of Ms. Lui, the vice president of the
Company. She is also the niece of Mr. Lai Law Kau,
the non-executive director of the Company.

MR. TSE WING CHIU RICKY

Mr. Tse, aged 57, is a non-executive director of the
Company. He is also a non-executive director of
Easyknit Enterprises. Mr. Tse obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Adam
Smith University of America in the United States in
1996. He has more than 30 years of experience in
garment manufacturing and merchandising. Mr. Tse
was appointed to the Board as an executive director
and vice president in 2005, and was subsequently
re-designated from vice president to president and
appointed as chief executive officer in 2006. In
2007, Mr. Tse was re-designated from an executive
director to a non-executive director of the Company
and resigned as president and chief executive
officer.

20

Annual Report 2014/15 4F i

EAMRX L

B XL 3055 B2010F &R AT
CHITESRERRAREITHEZE
BB - WINAKBEZEZHIT
B2 BERAERETHRZEEKE -
18 ¥220074F B University of Durham,
Englandif HU/E & B2 MBURE X E
B+ B - fif JRFA20094F E College
of Law, EnglandER{5 /A& B
KERBEBRIZER BRITAAR
AEIEEERLTZ2ERE - FINAEER
RIIEMITEEREREEZEL -

& K &

WA BT BAR A ZIEHIT
EE BNABKEREEZIFANTE
= o Hit A 1996 F BN 1S E B Adam
Smith University of Americaz L%
BRI T B o R KRS R IREE
7 T R A B B30T £ 5 o S AR
2005F ELZEMAEETST ANITE
EREIFFE  H1ENR2006F B8+
FEFATAETEREFITHEH -1
20074 - A ERPITESTRHEIT AN
RAIZEBITES  UHEERERS
FEITERABEL

Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEIFEEE AR A 7



Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

MR. LAl LAW KAU

Mr. Lai, aged 54, is a non-executive director of the
Company since 2013. He has been involved in the
textiles industry over 20 years and has extensive
experience in design, manufacturing, marketing and
distribution of apparel. He is also a non-executive
director of Easyknit Enterprises. Mr. Lai is a paternal
brother-in-law of Ms. Lui, the vice president of the
Company, and he is also an uncle of Ms. Koon, an
executive director of the Company.

MR. TSUI CHUN KONG

Mr. Tsui, aged 64, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He is also a
member and chairman of the Audit Committee;
a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. He obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the
Oklahoma City University in the United States in
1991 and is a fellow member of both The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Tsui has over 40 years of experience in the
public accounting profession and the commercial
sector, especially the travel industry. He has
experience in the preparation for the listing of shares
on the Stock Exchange and worked for a few listed
companies. Mr. Tsui is now practising as a public
accountant under his own name.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

MR. JONG KOON SANG

Mr. Jong, aged 66, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2005. He is also
a member and chairman of the Remuneration
Committee; a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee. Currently, Mr. Jong
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Association
of International Accountants, England; a fellow
member of the Chartered Management Institute,
England; a fellow member of The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong; the accountant ambassador of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants;
Honorary Vice President of Accounting Student
Society of Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology; and a member of the Regional Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Hospital Authority. He
is now the only Hong Kong Citizen elected as UK
Council member and Authorised Representative
in Hong Kong of the Association of International
Accountant, England. In the years of 2011 and 2012,
Mr. Jong was the President of The Association of
International Accountants, Hong Kong Branch. Mr.
Jong has over 40 years of management experience
in the financial, industrial and property business.
He is currently the director and a shareholder of
East Rise Corporation Limited which is a company
trading in certified non conflict African minerals.

MR. HON TAM CHUN

Mr. Hon, aged 80, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2008. He is also
a member and chairman of the Nomination
Committee; a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Hon is a retired
Magistrate and Barrister. He had been in service
with the Hong Kong Government for more than 40
years. During 1969 to 1973, Mr. Hon was a Crown
Counsel in the Legal Department of the Hong Kong
Government. He was a Judicial Officer in Judiciary
from 1975 to 1995 when he retired.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

The Board is committed to achieving high
standards of corporate governance by emphasizing
transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The Board strives to
ensure that effective self-regulatory practices exist
to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and to enhance long-term shareholders’
value.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) during the year ended 31 March 2015,
with the exception of the following deviation.

Code Provision A.2.1

Chairman and chief executive officer should not
be performed by the same individual

The Company does not have separate appointments
for president and chief executive officer. Mr.
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim holds both positions.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
president and chief executive officer in the same
person enables the Group to have a stable and
consistent leadership. It also facilitates the planning
and execution of the Company’s strategy and is
hence, for the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EERRE

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 8 Directors, with 3
executive Directors, 2 non-executive Directors and
3 independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”).
The Board has in its composition a balance of skills
and experience necessary for decision making and
fulfilling its business needs. The participation of non-
executive Directors in the Board bring independent
judgement on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance, conflicts of interest and
management process to ensure that the interests
of all shareholders of the Company have been duly
considered.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract for a term of 3 years and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less
than one month’s prior written notice to the other.

The Board considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent and has
received from each of them the annual confirmations
of independence required by the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE )

I}

The composition of the Board during the year and
up to date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim

— President and Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu - Vice President
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
Mr. Lai Law Kau

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Hon Tam Chun

The biographical details of all Directors are set out
in pages 19 to 22 of this annual report. Among
members of the Board, Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy is
the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Mr. Lai Law Kau
is the paternal brother-in-law of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
and the uncle of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy. Save
as disclosed herein, to the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no other financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships
among the members of the Board.

The Board is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies and
policies, approval of business plans, evaluating
the performance of the Group and oversight of
management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
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The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies
with particular attention paid to the growth and
financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of
the Group to executive Directors and senior
management of every business segment, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval.
Decisions of the Board are communicated to the
management through executive Directors who have
attended Board meetings.

The Company had arranged for appropriate
liability insurance for the directors of the Group
for indemnifying their liabilities arising from the
corporate activities.

All Directors have been provided, on a monthly
basis, with the Group’s management information
updates to give them aware of the Group’s affairs
and facilitates them to discharge their duties under
the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

Professional Development

The Company provides regular updates on the
business development of the Group. The Directors
are regularly briefed on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
In addition, the Company has been encouraging
the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules,
Companies Ordinance and corporate governance
practices organized by professional bodies or
chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective
training records pursuant to the Code.
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All Directors, namely, Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung
Tim, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy,
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky, Mr. Lai Law Kau, Mr. Tsui
Chun Kong, Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Hon Tam
Chun, have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills during the year. Such
professional development was completed either
by way of attending briefings, conference, forum,
courses and seminars and self-reading which are
relevant to the business or directors’ duties.

PREF(BEBREAKLE TEK
Kt EARE L FioKEBEL
BIRFEE GREBLRE HEAXL
NEBFEEE)NFABEZNEE
MEEEXRERNBERNEHRS

ZEEHMB N IEE - TR B RERD

AREREHFEREBRESTRE
Z/ﬁzﬁ$ ‘/;;%éa _A_ n%*i&ﬁﬁnj
SAKBERBEER -

Attendance record of Directors and Committee Members in 2014/15
2014155 ERNEERZEEHENLELE

2014 AGM General
20145 Meetings
RREFAE BRERE

Number of meetings BENY 1 2
Executive Directors HTES

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim  BJE/& 11 2/2
Lui Yuk Chu EX% 01 0/2
Koon Ho Yan Candy BAM 0/1 0/2

Non-executive Directors FHBTES
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky Hox i 11 2/2
Lai Law Kau PRI 1/1 2/2

Independent Non-executive By FEHITES

Directors
Tsui Chun Kong HrES 1/1 2/2
Jong Koon Sang A 11 2/2
Hon Tam Chun #iE 11 2/2

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee = Committee = Committee

EZg® ENRZEE FMERE REZEE

6 2 1 1
6/6 - 11 11
5/6 - - b
6/6 - - L
6/6 - - -
5/6 - - -
6/6 22 11 10
6/6 22 11 11
5/6 112 11 11
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Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the
preparation of annual financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the Group’s state
of affairs, results and cash flows for the year.
Management provides the Board with management
accounts and updates on a monthly basis, with
a view to giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, financial
position, and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2015, the Board:

(@ adopted HKFRS, which conform to the
International Financial Reporting Standards in all
material respects;

(b) selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently;

() made prudent and reasonable judgements and
estimates; and

(d) ensured that the financial statements were
prepared on a going concern basis.

In 2014/15, the annual and interim results
were published within 3 months and 2 months
respectively after the end of the relevant periods to
provide shareholders with transparent and timely
financial information.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, on the financial
statements are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the
system of internal controls of the Company and
for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is
committed to implementing an effective and sound
internal control system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
conducted reviews on the effectiveness of the
internal control system. The Audit Committee
reviewed the internal control report. No major issue
has been identified during the course of review.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the
following corporate governance duties:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
directors and senior management of the Group;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board
had performed the above-mentioned corporate
governance functions by reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
Board Committees

The Board has delegated authority to 4 standing
Committees with specific roles and responsibilities.
Their terms of reference and composition are
reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they
remain appropriate and reflect changes in good
practice and governance. The terms of reference
of each of the Committees are available on the
Company’s website. The attendance record of the
Committee members is shown on page 27 of this
Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, comprising 3 INEDs,
namely Mr. Tsui Chun Kong (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Hon Tam
Chun, held 2 meetings for the year ended 31 March
2015.

The principal functions of Audit Committee include:

— to oversee the relationship with the Auditor;

- to review the interim and annual financial
statements before publication; and

- to oversee the Group’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Audit
Committee (i) reviewed the reports from the Auditor,
accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, management representation letters,
and management’s response in relation to the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2014
and the interim results for the six months ended
30 September 2014; and (ii) reviewed the financial
reports for the year ended 31 March 2014 and for
the six months ended 30 September 2014 and
recommended the same to the Board for approval.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in relation to the audit service provided by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditor of
the Company, for the year ended 31 March 2015
amounted to HK$3,148,000 (2014: HK$2,501,000),
and those in relation to non-audit services amounted
to HK$3,169,000 (2014: HK$1,632,000).

Review of 2014/15 Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2014/15
consolidated financial statements in conjunction
with the external auditor of the Company. Based on
this review and discussions with management, the
Audit Committee was satisfied that the consolidated
financial statements were prepared in accordance
with applicable accounting standards, and fairly
present the Group’s financial position and results for
the year ended 31 March 2015.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising 4
members, including Mr. Jong Koon Sang (chairman
of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Tsui Chun
Kong and Mr. Hon Tam Chun who are INEDs, and
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim who is an executive
Director, held 1 meeting for the year ended 31
March 2015.

The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee include:

- to recommend to the Board on the Company’s
policies and structure for the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group;

- to recommend to the Board on the remuneration
package of all executive Directors and senior
management of the Group;

- to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to
corporate goals and objectives by the Board
from time to time.

The primary objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to attract, retain and motivate
the personnels by providing fair reward for their
contributions to the Group’s performance. In this
context, the remuneration policy is to set the overall
remuneration package at a competitive level and
in a form that permits additional remuneration to
be earned for high performance over a sustained
period. The remuneration packages are determined
with reference to the time commitment and
responsibilities of each individual, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
policies and structure for the Directors and senior
management of the Group.

Senior management’s remuneration payment of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 falls within
the following band:

Remuneration

#

Nil to HK$1,000,000
£ %£1,000,000/%& 7T

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
3,500,001 7T £4,000,000/% 7T

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, comprising 4 members,
including Mr. Hon Tam Chun (chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and
Mr. Jong Koon Sang who are INEDs and Mr. Kwong
Jimmy Cheung Tim who is an executive Director,
held 1 meeting for the year ended 31 March 2015.

The principal functions of the Nomination
Committee include:

- to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board;
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- to identify and nominate suitable candidates of
directors for the Board’s consideration; and

— to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive directors.

The Board adopted a nomination policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieving
board diversity in the Company in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board and its
corporate governance standard. The Company
recognizes the importance of having a diverse
team of board members, which is an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage.
The Nomination Committee has been delegated
the authority to review and assess the diversity of
the Board and its skills and experience by way of
consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience. The
Nomination Committee will give consideration to
the Policy when identifying and selecting suitably
qualified candidates. The Policy will be reviewed on
a regular basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Nomination Committee (i) reviewed the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board; and
(i) assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive directors.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all
the executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Jimmy
Cheung Tim (chairman of the Executive Committee),
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy.

It meets as and when required between regular
Board meetings of the Company, and operates as
a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board. Within the parameters of
authority delegated by the Board, the Executive
Committee is committed to the implementation of
the Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors
the Group’s investment and trading performance,
funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and
that the Board policy and procedures are followed.
Mr. Lee Po Wing, the company secretary of the
Company, has taken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
was not aware of any non-compliance with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code
regarding securities transactions by Directors
throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
entered into certain transactions with “related
parties” as defined under the applicable accounting
standards. Details of the material related party
transactions are disclosed in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements of this Annual
Report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening a special general meeting

Special general meetings may be convened upon
receipt of the written request submitted by any
shareholder(s) of the Company not less than
one-tenth of the share capital of the Company
carrying the rights of voting at general meetings of
the Company. Such written requisition must state
the purposes of the meeting, and signed by the
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the principal place
of business of the Company at Block A, 7th Floor,
Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483
Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong (for the attention of the Company
Secretary).

Putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Company
Secretary and deposit at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail to
1218share@easyknit.com.
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Putting forward proposal at general meeting

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at the general meeting. The
number of shareholders shall represent not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the general meeting, or shall not less
than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution,
accompanied by a statement with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the general meeting.
It must also be signed by all of the shareholders
concerned and be deposited at Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of
money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses giving the notice of the resolution
and circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholders concerned under applicable laws and
rules.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy in March 2012 reflecting
mostly the current practices of the Company for the
communication with its shareholders. Information
will be communicated to shareholders through:

— continuous disclosure to the Stock Exchange of
all material information;

- periodic disclosure through the annual and
interim reports;
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— notices of meetings and explanatory materials;

— the annual general meetings and other general
meetings; and

— the Company’s website at www.easyknit.com.

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue and meetings with shareholders. The
Board is grateful to Shareholders for their views, and
welcomes their questions and concerns raised in
relation to the management and governance of the
Group.

2014 Annual General Meeting

The Board and the management are committed to
the constructive use of the AGM as a forum to meet
with Shareholders and to hear their view and answer
their questions about the Group and its business.

The President and a majority of other Directors
along with key executives and the external auditor
attended the 2014 AGM and addressed concerns
raised by Shareholders about the resolutions being
proposed and the Company’s business.

At the 2014 AGM, the Company continued its
practice of proposing separate resolutions on each
substantially separate issue. All resolutions were
passed by way of poll verified by the registrar
scrutineer. The poll voting results are available on
the Company’s website.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE )

Matters resolved at the 2014 AGM 2014 FRFFEFAE LB ARI)EHE

received the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2014 together with the
Reports of the Directors and the Auditor

declared a final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2014

re-election of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, Mr. Lai Law Kau,
Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Jong Koon Sang as
Directors

re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
Auditor of the Company and authorization to the
Directors to fix the Auditor’s remuneration

approval of a general mandate for the
Directors to repurchase shares of an amount
not exceeding 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the Company’s issued share capital
as at the date of 2014 AGM

approval of a general mandate for the Directors
to allot and issue of new shares of an amount
not exceeding 20% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the Company’s issued share capital
as at the date of 2014 AGM
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
ﬁ':% \Aﬁd:x &)

2015 Annual General Meeting

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the 2015
AGM and exercise their rights to vote. They are
invited to ask questions related to the business of
the meeting, and will have an opportunity to meet
with the Directors following the conclusion of the
meeting.

Apart from normal business at the 2015 AGM, the
Board has proposed general mandates for the
repurchase of Company’s shares and the issue of
the Company’s shares. Further details of business
to be conducted at the 2015 AGM will be set out in
the circular to Shareholders to be sent together with
this Annual Report and posted on the Company’s
website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Company has not made any changes to its Bye-
Laws. A consolidated version of the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company is
available on the website of the Company.

CHANGES AFTER CLOSURE OF FINANCIAL
YEAR

This report takes into account the changes that have
occurred since 1 April 2015 to the date of approval
of this report.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHE

The Directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2015 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 57 and 58.

The directors of the Company now recommends the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.10 per share to
the shareholders on the register of members of the
Company on 26 August 2015, and the retention of
the remaining profit in the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of movements in the Company’s share
capital during the year are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent HK$624,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
The details of movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out
in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

BEEEHE @

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2015 by independent professional
property valuers and the gain arising on changes
in fair value of investment properties, which had
be charged directly to profit or loss, decreased by
35.2% or HK$14,344,000 to HK$26,370,000. Details
of these are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE

The details of the Group’s properties held for
development for sale are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2015 are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

BEEEHE @

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2015 were as follows:

BABER
SRkl

Contributed surplus
Accumulated profits

Under the laws in Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of a company is also available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
(President and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFREBE AR A 7
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EBREE o

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
Mr. Lai Law Kau

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Hon Tam Chun

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 99, Mr.
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky and Mr. Hon Tam Chun will
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company by rotation and, being
eligible, have offered themselves for reelection.

The Company has received annual confirmations
from each of the independent non-executive directors
as regards their independence to the Company
and considers that each of the independent non-
executive Directors is independent to the Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 19 to 22 of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

= %giﬁ % (#&)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisting
during or at the end of the year, and there was no
contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests or short
positions of the Directors and chief executives of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEERE o

(a) Interests in the Company (long position)

(a) REQF 2 (FR)

Aggregate
number of Approximate
ordinary percentage
shares held of interest
BREEBER EZZER
IR0 4 8 Aok
46,609,144 58.69%
29,179,480 36.74%

Number of
ordinary
shares held
Name of Director Capacity BELER
EEEE 5% R E
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Beneficiary of a trust 29,179,480
FEKZL (note |
BEREXEA (Hiti)
Interest of controlled 17,429,664
corporation (note ii)
T AR s
( K17t )
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy Beneficiary of a trust 29,179,480
BAM=EL (note i)
EEXEA (K tii)
Notes: Miet -

(U]

(ii)

(i)

46

29,179,480 shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Magical Profits Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited (“Winterbotham
Trust”) as the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the
beneficiaries of which included Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family

members other than her spouse).

17,429,664 shares are beneficially owned by Sea Rejoice
Limited which is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and
a director of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the
shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of
The Magical 2000 Trust.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

(b) Interests in associated corporations

(long positions)

(b) RAEEEZE 2R (FR)

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited KEEXEBFBERAL A
Number of  Number of Approximate
ordinary  underlying percentage
shares held shares held of interest
Name of Director Capacity BELER FHEEE Total 2N
EEEB 5% ROSE ROSE @t BAL
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Beneficiary of a trust 10,370,311 1,877,934 12,248,245 48.37%
FERRT (note iv)
ERX@A (Fiiziv)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy Beneficiary of a trust 10,370,311 1,877,934 12,248,245 48.37%
BAM®ZL (note v)
ERXaA (frizv)
Notes: Kiat
(iv) In the 10,370,311 shares, 2,121,304 shares and 8,249,007 (v) 710,370,3110% A& {3  2,121,3043% I%

shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by
Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco Development Limited
respectively, both are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company. Goodco Development Limited was also interested
in 1,877,934 underlying shares (subject to adjustment) to be
issued upon the full conversion of the 2014 convertible note.
Sea Rejoice Limited is interested in approximately 21.95% of
the issued share capital of the Company and it is wholly-owned
by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Magical Profits Limited is interested
in approximately 36.74% of the issued share capital of the
Company and it is wholly-owned by Accumulate More Profits
Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by Winterbotham Trust as
the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which
included Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family members other than

her spouse).

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and
a director of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the
shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of
The Magical 2000 Trust.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors or any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18, was
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any other body
corporate nor had exercised any such right.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2015, the persons (other than the
directors or the chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Name of Shareholder Note  Capacity
BRERAR Wit &H
Koon Wing Yee i Interest of spouse
Bk (L e
Sea Rejoice Limited i&ii  Beneficial owner
LEABRATE ExEEA
Magical Profits Limited i &ii  Beneficial owner
EREAA
Accumulate More Profits i nterest of controlled
Limited corporation
REGVEE 2
Winterbotham Trust i&iii Trustee
ErEA
Winterbotham Holdings 7 Interest of controlled
Limited corporation
REEGEE <
Markson International i Interest of controlled
Holdings Limited corporation
REEGNEE 2 R
Christopher Geoffrey i Interest of controlled
Douglas Hooper corporation
REGNEE 2
lvan Geoffrey Douglas i Interest of controlled

__corporation
REHEE 2w

Hooper
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Number of

ordinary
shares held Approximate
(long position) percentage of
FEEER interest
BHHAE Bz
(##8) Bt
46,609,144 58.69%
17,429,664 21.95%
29,179,480 36.74%
29,179,480 36.74%
29,179,480 36.74%
29,179,480 36.74%
29,179,480 36.74%
29,179,480 36.74%
29,179,480 36.74%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Notes:

(i)

Out of 46,609,144 shares, 17,429,664 shares are beneficially owned
by Sea Rejoice Limited which is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.
The remaining 29,179,480 shares are registered in the name of and
beneficially owned by Magical Profits Limited which is wholly-owned
by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by Winterbotham Trust as the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the
beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the
Company, and her family members other than her spouse). Ms. Koon
Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a director of
the Company, is deemed to be interested in the 29,179,480 shares
by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The Magical
2000 Trust. Mr. Koon Wing Yee, being the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu,
is deemed to be interested in the 46,609,144 shares by virtue of the
SFO.

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being a director of the Company, is also a director of

Sea Rejoice Limited and Magical Profits Limited.

With effect from 3 June 2014, Winterbotham Trust became the new
trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which include
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family members other than her spouse).
Winterbotham Trust is owned as to 75% by Winterbotham Holdings
Limited (“Winterbotham Holdings”) and 25% by Markson International
Holdings Limited (“Markson”) respectively. Winterbotham Holdings
is owned as to approximately 99.99% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey
Douglas Hooper. And Markson is owned as to 60% by Mr. Christopher
Geoffrey Douglas Hooper and 40% by Mr. Ivan Geoffrey Douglas
Hooper respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, the
Company had not been notified by any persons
(other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in
the register kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(i)

(ii)

The Company

On 5 July 2012, a new share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) was adopted and approved by
the shareholders of the Company for a period
of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.
Since the adoption date, the Board, may at its
discretion, grant share options to any eligible
person to subscribe for the shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions
as stipulated in the Scheme. During the year
ended 31 March 2015, no share option was
outstanding, granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Scheme. Particulars of the
Scheme and details of the movements during
the year in the share options of the Company are
set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited (“EE”)

On 29 June 2012, a new share option scheme
(the “EE Scheme”) was adopted and approved
by the shareholders of EE for a period of 10
years commencing on the adoption date. Since
the adoption date, the Board of EE, may at its
discretion, grant share options to any eligible
person to subscribe for the shares in EE subject
to the terms and conditions as stipulated in the
EE Scheme. During the year ended 31 March
2015, no share option was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the EE
Scheme. Particulars of the EE Scheme and
details of the movements during the year in the
share options of EE are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EBREE o

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the 5 largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 94.9% of the Group’s
purchases and the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 30.4% of the Group’s purchases.

The 5 largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 49.7% of the Group’s turnover and
the largest customer accounted for approximately
20.0% of the Group’s turnover.

None of the directors, their associates and
shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors of the Company, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
an interest in the Group’s 5 largest suppliers or
customers.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 March
2015.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the
Group is set up by the executive directors of
the Company on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice.

The emolument of the directors of the Company
is determined by the Board after recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the time commitment and responsibilities of
individual directors, the Company’s performance
and the prevailing market conditions.

52

Annual Report 2014/15 4

TEHEBREF

RER KEB 75X ERIEARE
B 2 FREEREA194.9% MR ALLER
BMEAREE 7 FRKEEE430.4%

AREEZEREFHEAEE 2 L%
#)49.7% MERAFFPAMEARNER 2
K 4120.0% °

BmER WEIMEALHAAT
BB (AR A EBA ARG AR
BBASRE% ) A S5 A RE R
B o

BE HENREERA

RE Z2015FE3A31H IEFER K
NAEIKETRIMEBARBMEREE - 1
ERELOARQTEM LTS

7 B B R

AEBEE ZHBMBRIIHARA]
HITEFREF2RR  ERLRTT
MBI HI5E

ARREZZHHMIAESTSRER
FMEEec2E% RHENESELZ
(R AS PR MBS « R DRl 2 RaE MR
THRRMERE °

Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEIFEEE AR A 7



Directors’ Report (continued)

The Company has adopted a share option scheme
as an incentive to directors and eligible employees.
Details of the scheme are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws in Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors
as at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2015.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary duty of Audit Committee is to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control systems of the Group. The Audit Committee
comprised of 3 independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2015.
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Directors’ Report (continueq)

EESHRE @

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set
out on pages 23 to 40.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event occurring after the
end of the reporting period are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% A

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EASYKNIT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 153,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continueq)

Lt U LTI

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2015, and of
the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBRsaRkEMEEmRER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

Turnover
Cost of goods sold and services rendered

Gross profit

Other income

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties

Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of
investments held for trading

Gain on fair value change of financial
assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries

Share of results of associates

Loss on deemed disposal of associates

Gain from a bargain purchase

Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation charge

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income (expense)
Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Fair value gain on leasehold properties
upon transfer to investment properties

e
$HE RIEH AR A

EH

HAp A
TR
REMEZRAYE

FIEREREZ
~HEEE WS (BR)

BRAFEFABREZEHEE

2 DT ERBRS
TG R 2 U2

BREEHBERRZER
DIEHE R R RE
BRESHMENRZER
KB ek W 2 Y

B B A A
IR X
AN 4 A

Hitb2EWA (FAX)
BRI T EET DEE
B ZBA -

HOMEEREREMEL

AF{EkE

NOTES
Hret

32

33
10

13

11

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
649,475 275,757
(410,184) (136,302)
239,291 139,455
18,643 19,155
(44,143) (11,320)
(66,249) (69,656)
26,370 40,714
114,288 (3,359)
411 =

= 2,346

= (348,604)

= 295,145

- (333,884)

- 308,202
(45,042) (14,358)
243,569 23,836
(20,963) (6,701)
222,606 17,135
= 14,566
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (ontinueo)

GERERHEMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2015

/48 )
(&)

BE2015F3H31HILFE
2015 2014
NOTE HK$’000 HK$°000
izt FETT FEr
Items that may be reclassified BER AJBEEFT 7 B2
subsequently to profit or loss: EmEE -
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHEEREZ AT ES
investments 17,760 (8,740)
Exchange difference arising on translation R E/GINE BRI FEHREK 2
of financial statements of foreign EHER
operations (11,818) (290)
Exchange difference released upon IR A E M B A R
deemed disposal of subsidiaries fRRCIEN ZR - (10,071)
Released on disposal of available-for-sale 7 & A i i E R E R R4
investments - (2,346)
Share of investment reserve of associates ~ D HEEL QT 2 R & HE - (268)
Share of translation reserve of associates DB &N ) 2 [ - (1,310)
Release of investment reserve upon R A S E A R
deemed disposal of associates fEBR 2 BB - 268
Release of translation reserve upon AR NS IS
deemed disposal of associates R RR 2 B 5 - 1,310
5,942 (16,447)
Other comprehensive income (expense) REE 2 HA2HE
for the year WA (F%) 5,942 (1,881)
Total comprehensive income for the year REE 2 2HEINALLTE 228,548 15,254
Profit for the year attributable to: DIRARFEEHEF
— owners of the Company VNG 202,867 13,036
- non-controlling interests —JEIEpR RS 19,739 4,099
222,606 17,135
Total comprehensive income for the year DERFEZ2E2EBRABRE:
attributable to:
— owners of the Company . VNI 208,235 9,221
— non-controlling interests — IR R S 20,313 6,033
228,548 15,254
Basic earnings per share BRERERF 15 HK$2.55 HK$0.16
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB ARR &R
At 31 March 2015
HK2015%3H31H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Available-for-sale investments

Loans receivable

Deposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Deposit and prepayments for a life
insurance policy

Current assets

Properties held for development for sale

Deposits and prepayments for
acquisition of properties held for
development for sale

Properties held for sale

Investments held for trading

Financial assets designated as at fair
value through profit and loss

Trade and other receivables

Bills receivable

Loans receivable

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Tax payable
Secured bank borrowings

Net current assets

s

2%
N

r=3
/)L

NOTES
Hiat
MENEE
Y R KB 17
BB 18
AHEERE 19
I E 3K 20
EBAYME BE&
RS
ASREZES RFBRNK
21
B}EE
FHEHERRYE 22
BABELEEEDEZ
e MFERR
BIEHEME
HBIEEERE 23
BAFEFABRZ
TEMEE 24
B 5 hEMEWGIE 25
FEW & 26
R E R 20
RITHB LIRS 27
mEAaE
B MEMENFIE 28
FEf T IE
BEMIEITEE 29
BEEFE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
36,220 37,306
2,756,494 2,520,390
97,916 70,555
54,017 69,221
4,249 1,901
9,901 9,805
2,958,797 2,709,178
604,918 1,542,764
84,848 L.
1,035,599 19,013
325,435 279,280
= 28,622
93,771 19,248
869 Ll
100,831 83,805
378,520 601,139
2,624,791 2,573,871
104,494 68,711
29,615 16,176
902,767 34,602
1,036,876 119,489
1,587,915 2,454,382
4,546,712 5,163,560
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continueq)
mEMBRRRER 2

At 31 March 2015

R2015F3H31H
2015 2014
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Kz FET FEr
Capital and reserves BEARKEE
Share capital &N 30 7,942 7,942
Reserves & 2,964,272 2,720,575
Equity attributable to owners of the RARRR B
Company 2,972,214 2,728,517
Non-controlling interests FEVERR M 2 922,585 715,748
3,894,799 3,444,265
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Secured bank borrowings HIRHIRITEE 29 635,059 1,706,560
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEE 31 16,854 12,735
651,913 1,719,295
4,546,712 5,163,560

The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 153 were approved %= £ & /2201546 5298 it ff M IR #E 3 R F57%
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2015 and  153B 2R BB ikER W T ESAREE:
are signed on its behalf by:

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim Lui Yuk Chu
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF 4
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B E2015F3A31 HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ANIRREL
Investment Property Non-
Share Share Capital  Translation Special ~ Contributed luati luati lated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
B& ROER BARE EXffE RHIEE BARBR REERRE NXEMARR EitER Mt FERER ag
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK$ 000
T AT AT Er AT TEr THr TEr Er TEr AT AT
(ﬂofea/ (ke (ote g) (roted)
(Wiita) (Hite) (W) (Wite)
At 1 Aprl2013 01854718 7942 218330 196,565 26347 9,800 220937 16,220 40264 2,014957 2,751,362 450,562 3201924
Change in fair value of avallable-for-sale HHEREATERD
investments - - - - - - 3740 - - (3,740 - (3,740)
Exchange difference on translation of financial 4889\ & B BB RE 2
statements of foreign operations 3:533 - - - (2.224) - - - - - (2.224) 1,934 (290)
Exchange difference released upon deemed £ A EN AT
lsposalof subsicaies 10t 32 ENZ2 (M, = = = (10071) = = - - - (10071) 1 (10071)
Released on disposal of avaiable-for-sale HETHERER 134 ?
investments - - - - - - (2,346) - - (2,346) - (2,346)
Share of investment reserve of associates MEBERA RARE - - - - - - (268) - - (268) - (268)
Share of translation reserve of associates AMEBERAZERGE - - - (1,310 - - - - - (1,310 - (1310
Release of investment revaluation reserve upon 15 &1 EBE TFM?Z
deemed disposal of associates RESHEE = - - - - - 268 - - 268 - 268
Release of translation reserve upon deemed R AHEBE A AERR 2
disposal of associates EjiE - - - 1310 - - - - - 1310 - 1310
Fair vale gain on leasenold properties ELREL EEY
upon transfer to investment properties FENERATERE - - - - - - - 14,566 - 14,566 - 14,566
Profit for the year TERET S o = = o o o o 13,036 13,036 4099 17,135
Total comprehensiv (expense) income RERZRE (FR)
for the year N = = = (12,295 o o (6,086) 14,566 13,036 9221 6,033 15,254
Proceeds received from rights issue of WEBAARRAEHE
asubsidary = = = = . . . . (299) (299) 69,393 69095
Deemed disposal a subsidry fote 32) - - - - - - - (13925) 1395 N I )
Deemed acquistion of subsidiaries /rofe 39 ﬁﬁlﬁl § - - - - - - - - - - 715,748 715,748
Diidends 5 = = = 5 5 . - BITe pLTeY I (1768
= = = = = = = (13925) (18.140) 006 25918 227087
At 31 March 2014 2014537310 7942 218330 196,565 14,052 9,800 220937 10,134 40905 2,009,852 2,128517 715,748 3,444,265
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHHEREATEED
investments - - - - - - 17,952 - - 17,952 (192) 17,760
Exchange difference on translaion of financial ?ﬁ’é 8 f ‘ﬁ???z BEx2
statements of foreign operations - - - (12,584) - - - - - (12,584) 766 (11,818
Proft for th year MI‘?ZM - = = - - - - - 202867 202867 19739 22606
Total comprehensive (expense) income FERZZE (B2 KA
for the year 8 o = = (12,584) o o 17,952 o 202,867 208,235 20313 208548
Proceeds received and related expenses RE-FNRAFLZ
In respect of rights issue of a subsidiary i Eﬁ AR
5 = = = = = = = = 751 /T S 51
Conversion of convertible notes issued by B2 ENRLA
anon-wholly owned subsidiary Bl TAREE - - - - - - - - 179,718 179718 (179.718) -
Deemed disposal of partial interest in REXERHIERLE
asubsidiary without a loss of control BAKBAAES - - - - - - - - (135557) (135,557) 181,314 45757
Dividends e:) - - - - - - - - (7,94 (7,94 - (7942
- - - - - - - - 35,462 35,462 186,524 221,986
At 31 March 2015 H201583A31H 7942 218330 196,565 1,468 9,800 220937 28,086 40,905 2,248,181 2912214 922,585 3,894,799
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
MERRRER o)

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

Notes:

@)

62

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from the
reduction of the share capital of the Company in October 2006.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the companies
now forming the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation prior to
the listing of the Company’s shares in 1995.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising from
the reduction of certain reserves of the Company in August 2004.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group includes () the gain on
revaluation of certain leasehold properties of the Group, (i) share of
the gain on revaluation of prepaid lease payments and property, plant
and equipment of the Group’s former associates, both arising from
the transfer of the Group’s leasehold properties or associates’ prepaid
lease payments and property, plant and equipment to investment
properties in prior years and (i) the transfer to accumulated profits
upon deemed disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March
2014.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= =B
FEEERER
For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Interest income

Interest expense

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Amortisation of premium and other
expenses charged on a life
insurance policy

Dividend income from listed
investments

Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

(Gain) loss on fair value changes of
investments held for trading

Gain on fair value change of financial
assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Share of results of associates

Loss on deemed disposal of
subsidiaries

Loss on deemed disposal of
associates

Gain from a bargain purchase

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Increase in properties held for
development for sale

Decrease in properties held for sale

Increase in deposits and prepayments
for acquisition of properties held for
development for sale

Decrease (increase) in investments
held for trading

Increase in trade and other receivables

(Increase) decrease in bills receivable

Increase in loans receivable

Increase in trade and other payables

Increase in bills payable

Cash from (used in) operations

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Overseas tax paid

Overseas tax refunded

Dividend received from investments
held for trading

Net cash from (used in) operating activities

RERLEH 2 RERE
B 25 AT g A1)
E
FL2HA
A EFX
mE BB M
Ri2ITE
ABREZRER
H At A S22 # 3
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B T IR
SR

HT’EEE&EZ RFE

""""" 252 (Was) B8
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2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FETT
243,569 23,836
(6,600) (3,117
45,042 14,358
1,711 1,557
279 277
(11,593) (9,710)
(26,370) (40,714)
- (2,346)
(114,288) 3,359
(411) =
- (295,145)
— 348,604
= 333,884
— (308,202)
131,339 66,641
(256,497) (808,881)
250,109 47,432
(84,848) =
68,133 (11,307
(74,523) (4,778)
(869) 153
(1,822) (64,652)
35,540 9,213
= 1,553
66,562 (764,626)
(3,218) (18,689)
(199) (318)
— 95
7,624 9,007
70,769 (774,531)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
GEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B ZE2015F3731H 1 FF
2015 2014
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
ki3 FET FHEr
Cash flows from investing activities REREEH 2 RERE
Redemption of financial assets BEZAFEFAEBRZ
designated as at fair value through TREE
profit or loss 29,033 -
Interest received FLEMA 6,224 2,742
Dividend received from available-for-sale AHEEREZBERERE
investments 3,969 703
Acquisition of investment properties BAKEME (293,655) (1,166)
Acquisition of available-for-sale BANHLERE
investments (9,601) (24,626)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BAME BELEHEZ
plant and equipment Bffike (2,348) (1,901)
Purchase of property, AV BB RRE
plant and equipment (624) (21)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B Y B A A 33 - 490,003
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHBEREY
available-for-sale investments Fr5 38 - 2,435
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries RAELEHNB AR 32 - (244,691)
Placement of bank deposits with original R B=(E AR
maturity of more than three months RITIFR - (130,000)
Acquisition of additional interests in W B i A B 2 BEAME =
associates - (53,442)
Net cash (used in) from investing activites ~ (FIR) REHREES 2
Re 558 (267,002) 40,036
Cash flows from financing activities REMEEDZRERE
Proceeds received from rights issue of KA BRRHBKRRD 2
shares of a subsidiary (net of expenses) FRSRA (HMBRAX) 184,171 69,095
Bank borrowings raised E5RITIEE 182,361 1,017,610
Net proceeds from partial disposal of BHEKREES 2 BERD
subsidiaries without loss of control B ARz B RIE T8 45,757 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (385,697) (28,582)
Interest paid ERFE (44,799) (32,608)
Dividends paid BATRR B (7,942) (31,768)
Net cash (used in) from financing activites ~ (FIR) KA FE RS 2
REFH (26,149) 993,747
Net (decrease) increase in cash and ReRFERBE ORD)
cash equivalents BINFEE (222,382) 259,252
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of F ¥ & N ERE &
the year 601,139 340,869
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEREE) 2 B (237) 1,018
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRBEeRERKES
the year, represented by BIRTHEBRIRSE
bank balances and cash 378,520 601,139
Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEFEEE AR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

1.

GENERAL

Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”) which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
39.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred as the “Group”) have applied, for the first time, the following
amendments to HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and a new interpretation (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment entities

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge
accounting

HK(IFRIC) - INT 21 Levies

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

The application of these new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

— AR

KEBBREBBRAR (KRR EBRRE
AR ARBEBERAR] RN EERS
A SMERAR] ([BRAT])EREM-
KRR MM ERE A & = B E I
RAFER [ARER] —EHRHKE -

RAMBHRRDLETIE ([HKS ) 3K
[HKD ) - MR BARR ZHEEEHE -

RRAR T —EREERAF - ARBZERE
MEBLAREENE  XBEHNHIE39

FERMEREET 2 BEBMBHRELEN (&
BHIREEL])

REFE KRB REMBE QR (AT 5
BIAKE]EREREEEHNAE ([F
AEFTEAE])BMAZATRERT BB
BRELENRBA G EAN([FEEE
A1) it A TS & g Rge
Rl BAYBREEN]) -

BEUMBHEEUNEI0R REER
BREMBEHRELERE125
RER G ERF275R
(BFTA)

BB GHERF325% TREER
(BFIE) ERARCHEHE

BB G ER 365 FeMEEL
(BFIE) Gk

BB ERF305 MTETAERRY
(BRIE) A TR

B (ARHHERS R
Z2EZ8®)
ik

REFEAFIE RGBT 2T HRESE

A AEERNFEIBEFE 2MBERR R
AR, SR & B T Rk T B BB 3 A

ERpE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

BE M BHRHEE o

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial instruments’

Revenue from contracts with
customers?

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations?

Disclosure initiative*

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer plants?

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions?®

Equity method in separate
financial statements?

Sale and contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture?

Investment entities: Applying the

consolidation exception*

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010 - 2012 cycle®

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011 - 2013 cycle?

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2012 - 2014 cycle?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,
with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

earlier application permitted.

- Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.
< Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEFEEE AR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised version
of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to
the classification and measurement requirements by introducing
a fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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QSRR 2014F BIXEET A E B B iEa) & /&
EMRERTE KD ZEHETHEGHEIA
SIATRAFEFARMEAME] T2
Al BB R EREELBRER

BRMBMEERESRMHEZE M
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A MERRIEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as
fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types
of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test
has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
“economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment of hedge
effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk management activities
have also been introduced.
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A3 RE R EL BB RREAG
HEMAR BEMBEREERFIR
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ERREREEEH WERTE

The directors of the Company are in the process of assessing the
financial impact of application of HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede
the current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when control of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the HKFRS 15 may
have significant impact on amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the other new
and revised HKFRSs will have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
mEMERREE 2

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the “Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Annual Report 2014/15 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 220153431 HiF F/&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)
The significant accounting policies are set out below:
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group or other vote holders;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
mEMEmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement”, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continveq)
A ERRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 2201543431 HiF F/&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

3.

4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of associates used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, investments in
associates are initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associates. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 220153431 HiF F/&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be an associate. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and the retained interest
is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be required
if that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

Where a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Sale of goods and properties held for development for sale

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments received
from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under current liabilities.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 220153431 HiF F/&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Rental income

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases
is described in the accounting policy below.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal of retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
and equipment is determined as the difference between the net
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation (including properties under construction for
such purposes).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
mEMERREE 2

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, except for the properties
transferred from property, plant and equipment, which are measured
at fair value at date of transfer. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction. Investment properties
under construction are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Any difference between the fair value of the
investment properties under construction and their carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of
owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying amount
and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. The carrying amount is arrived at after taking
into account the reversal of any previously recognised accumulated
impairment loss to profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the property, plant and equipment at the date when
impairment is reversed does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been had the impairment not been recognised. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to accumulated profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 220153431 HiF F/&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale are classified as current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, including purchase
costs of the properties for development and development costs, are
capitalised and included as properties held for development until
such time when they are completed.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are classified
under current assets. They are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
mEMERREE 2

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL,
of which interest income is excluded in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial
assets held for trading and those designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of an identified portfolio of
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 220153431 HiF F/&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit and loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
deposit and prepayments for a life insurance policy, trade and other
receivables, bills receivable, loans receivable, and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either

designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

BEMBHRHE o

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than financial assets at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss is recognised as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 220154331 HiF F&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and loans receivable, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When an item of trade and other receivables or loan receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowances account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
asset revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A ERRIEE 2

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and secured
bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE 2

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 220154331 HiF F&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H1EFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of exchange reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 220153431 HiF F &
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A ERRIEE 2

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 220154331 HiF F&
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continueq)
Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can
be made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases and amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.

Retirement benefit scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme, state-
sponsored pension schemes operated by the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) government or the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as expenses when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contribution.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Continued)

(@

90

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the management
has reviewed the Group’s investment properties portfolios
and concluded that while the Group’s investment properties
located in Hong Kong and Singapore are depreciable,
they are not held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred taxation arising from these
investment properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore,
the management determined that the presumption that these
investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale is not rebutted.

For the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC,
the management concluded that they are depreciable and
are being held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation
arising from investment properties located in the PRC, the
management determined that the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
through sale is rebutted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF 4.
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

BRH AW R TR EEN 2 X EIOR

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Continued) ERgBERZEEHE (&)

(b) Interests in Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited b) REEFERERLIA ([REEX])

(“Easyknit Enterprises”)

For the purpose of assessing whether or not the Group
has control over Easyknit Enterprises and its subsidiaries
(collectively “EE Group”), the directors considered whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of EE Group unilaterally. In making this judgment,
the directors considered all relevant facts and circumstances,
including the Group’s dominant voting interest relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders,
participation rates of shareholders and voting patterns in
previous shareholders’ meetings. During the year ended 31
March 2014, the directors of the Company were of the opinion
that the Group did not have control over EE Group during
the period from 24 September 2013 (the date of new shares
placement by Easyknit Enterprises of which the Company
was not a subscriber which resulted in dilution of the Group’s
shareholding in Easyknit Enterprises from 43.52% to 36.27 %)
to 27 March 2014 (the date of the Group’s subscription of
convertible note issued by Easyknit Enterprises which gave
potential voting rights and hence practical ability to the
Group). As such, EE Group became associates of the Group
with effect from 24 September 2013 and have since been
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2014 using the equity method of
accounting until Easyknit Enterprises subsequently became a
subsidiary of the Company on 27 March 2014. Details of the
deemed disposal of subsidiaries and deemed acquisition of
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2014 are set out
in notes 32 and 33 respectively.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Interests in Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited

(“Easyknit Enterprises”) (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group’s
shareholding of Easyknit Enterprises increased from 36.27%
at 1 April 2014 to 40.96% at 31 March 2015. Accordingly,
Easyknit Enterprises remained as a subsidiary of the Group.
The directors assessed whether or not the Group has control
over EE Group based on whether the Group has the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of EE Group unilaterally.
In making this judgment, the directors considered the Group’s
dominant voting interest relative to the size and dispersion
of holdings of the other vote holders, and any additional
facts and circumstances, including the participation rates of
shareholders and voting patterns in previous shareholders’
meetings and concluded that the Group maintain control over
EE Group during the year despite its shareholding therein was
less than 50% and that EE Group qualified as a subsidiary
of the Group under HKFRS 10 for the year ended 31 March
2015. Accordingly, the financial information of EE Group is
consolidated for the whole year ended 31 March 2015.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

TEEFHBRTEREMGGF ZEERE
Z)

ERESTHRREENE (&)

(b) *EHFEZKRERAA ([KRBHE])

2 (E)

REE2015F3831B L EE - A& H
RKFETE 2K E B P2014F4 A1
H 236.27%3% N & 720153 A31H
240.96% ° it Ok EEHEEFTAAE
BB AR - BEERTEAEE
EEBMAEKEEESE 2R TR
BAREBRESEERENEF EEE
XEBEEE ZHABEES - FE/EH H
B ZERCERIAEEEHHEMBRE
B ATSIREEZRER DB EM
TR 2 IR S R AT EESN
EERER BERENBERREAS
Z2HEREERN  RMmELER -
BRI IR B K A50% @ A= B A 4
XEEBEESE 2ZH REZ=201553
A31BIEFE  RIEBFBI KRS ER)
F105 KEBRBEEEEEERIAELE
Bz —H B AT - Eitt - 2201593
ABLZBEAFEE HFEAEKBREES
B2 BER -

TRE T2 EBRIR

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

(c)

92

NTREERRZEERR ARNEREH
Rz B AEE G 2 EBHR  ZE b5
FHEAGEEHEREERABEZREERT
—HBRFEEHREAFABZERRER

Impairment allowance on loans receivable

The amount of the impairment of loans receivable is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in estimating
the expected discounted future cash flows. If the actual future
cash flows are less than the original estimated cash flows of
loans receivable, additional allowances would be required. No
impairment allowance on loans receivable is made for both
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Impairment loss on properties held for development for

(e)

sale/properties held for sale

Management reviews the recoverability of the Group’s
properties held for development for sale/properties
held for sale amounting to HK$1,640,517,000 (2014:
HK$1,561,777,000) with reference to current market
environment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may exceed
its net realisable value, as appropriate. Appropriate write-
down for estimated irrecoverable amounts is recognised in
profit or loss when the net realisable value is below cost. The
estimates of net realisable value are based on the evidence
available at the time the estimates are made, and the amounts
of the properties held for development for sale/properties held
for sale are expected to realise or recover. Actual realised
amount may differ from estimates, resulting in a decrease or
an increase in the net realisable value of the properties held for
development for sale/properties held for sale and additional
write-down or additional reversal of impairment loss previously
recognised may be required.

Investment properties

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated
team to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
B E201543831 AL F R

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(e) Investment properties (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent they are available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation of the Group’s investment properties.
At the end of the reporting period, the management works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group
will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs
can be derived from observable quoted prices in the active
market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will
adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where
there is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the
causes of the fluctuations will be reported to directors of
the Company. Information about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties is disclosed in note 18.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes secured bank borrowings in note 29, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, accumulated profits and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and raising or repayment of bank borrowings.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE G R 2 7
9 4 Annual Report 2014/15 4F 5

TEEFHBRTEREMGTF ZEERE
Z)

THREMGMTZEERR (&)
(e) REWH(#)

et ARBIREMEN D TFER A%
B R AT S e T 5 AT B B - 3T
BEF1BEGARE AEEZEE =7
RERMGEMYARE ZREMFEE
TRE-RBREAR ERELESER
SMNERE (B B £ & F - B E SB2RR R
SR HE EREE HERMREA
B - RO R BTSRRI E S H
BARE AAEEERERNRAE
2f % A\ BUR - I 28R 8 A BUER - R
AEESRMAEEI\RARIBNGE
Bit-WEEAFEBELERNED &
AARBEERERDRE - FRETE
REE 2 REMERNF BT HERM
KB ABIBOE RN M 18K E -

EXmEpEE

RERASERETERTEERERLE K
SEHEERETER SREBEBERRE
BHRERRETFEMARREREGRS D
o AEE 2 BEERIEBEFEMER -

AEBNEARBERSERFRETREM
O BEMRITIER ReRFRRESR
ARRRBREG LS B BREBEITRA
Rt M R fE -

RRBEETER@ ERRE - MERIRF
—HD BREERERKAREERERDN
HERR - REBZEENER AEEKES
IR RS BT R B R EERTITHE
B ATFEBBEARE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

B ZE2015F3731H 1F FZ
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. @TAE
a. Categories of financial instruments a. S@MIAZER
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Financial assets THMEE
Loans and receivables (including cash B K EWGRIA
and cash equivalents) (PREASEERES)
- Trade and other receivables —B 5 KA W FRIE 90,442 14,947
- Bills receivable —EWEE 869 -
— Deposit and prepayments for —AEBREZEE
a life insurance policy MIBRER 10,181 10,084
- Loans receivable —ERE K 154,848 153,026
- Bank balances and cash —IRITHEB LIRS 378,520 601,139
634,860 779,196
Fair value through profit or loss RATESAER
— Investments held for trading —FEEEREA 325,435 279,280
- Financial assets designated — AT EFAER
as at FVTPL TREE - 28,622
325,435 307,902
Available-for-sale financial assets AP ESREE
— Available-for-sale investments —AREERE 97,916 70,555
Financial liabilities cRAaE
Amortised cost BB
- Trade and other payables — 85 KEMERFIE 42,249 47,325
— Secured bank borrowings —BEIPRITEE 1,537,826 1,741,162
1,580,075 1,788,487
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B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

96

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, investments held for trading, financial
assets designated as at FVTPL, deposit and prepayments
for a life insurance policy, trade and other receivables, bills
receivable, loans receivable, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables and secured bank borrowings. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure that appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk
() Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to certain bank balances, bank borrowings and
variable-rate loans receivable. The Group is also exposed
to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
loans receivable and deposit and prepayments for a life
insurance policy. The Group has not used any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to such interest rate
risk, however, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary action when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) arising from bank
borrowings.

6.
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B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for certain
bank balances, bank borrowings and variable-rate
loans receivable. The analysis was prepared assuming
these balances outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. 10 basis
points increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates. If interest rate had been 10 basis points higher
or lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 would
decrease or increase by approximately HK$1,234,000
(2014: approximately HK$1,189,000).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Currency risk

Certain subsidiaries of the Company have sales
denominated in currencies other than their functional
currencies, which exposes the Group to foreign currency
risk. All of the Group’s purchases are denominated in the
group entities’ functional currency.
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ZE) o fF KR e ofEE%E
BMEr A A= EFTE  ARE
BRH E2015F3831BILFEZ
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

Bt 220154331 HiF F/&
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i)  Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign

S@MIAE(Z)

ERAREBREERBE (&)

TS EEE (&)
(i) E®EE(E)

RBEMR - AINEFE 2 REE

currencies denominated monetary assets at the end of BrEYEEZREBENT:
the reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =F=
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR 29,400 15 - =
United States dollars
(“USD?) e 26,934 29,490 19 42
HKD BT 117 72 - -
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate risk
on HKD against RMB and USD for the foreign currencies
denominated monetary assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in functional currency of
the relevant group entities against the relevant foreign
currencies. 5% (2014: 5%) represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a
5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit or a decrease in loss
where functional currency of the relevant group entities
weaken 5% against the relevant foreign currency. For a
5% strengthening of functional currency of the relevant
group entities against the relevant foreign currency, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit or
loss, and the amounts below would be negative.

Increase in profit 2 138

TRITHE(

MEEREEREREE (&)

TEmE ()

(i)

B ER (&)
BREDMN (&)

TRFVEEERER 2R
e 5 MR INEE FHE K B2 (E5% 2 B8
REJE o 5% (20145 :5% ) A& 18
;TIZT"I%E(:.\E%“@UZ*WE
BRESMEBFEUINEHEZ
MAFEEKEE  WHFERAE
HE A RRIER 5% &)
HEHERTEBERER 2T
B EREINE B B5% FTE B
PG Nk E R A o MEE B RS
ZINEEEHE R INE FHES%
BeHERERAERERZE
Z MIyREHEEREH-

RMB impact

ARBZE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
1,227 1

As HKD is pegged to USD, the financial impact on
exchange risk is expected to be insignificant.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need
arise.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

100

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles and the Group has
a team to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise. The Group’s
equity price risk is concentrated on equity securities
listed in Hong Kong and these investments are diversified
into several different industries.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of
the reporting date.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified
as investments held for trading had been 10% (2014:
10%) higher/lower, profit for the year ended 31 March
2015 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$27,174,000 (2014: approximately HK$23,320,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of investments held
for trading and financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified
as available-for-sale investments had been 10%
(2014: 10%) higher/lower, the investment revaluation
reserve would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$9,791,000 (2014: approximately HK$7,056,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

6.
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B 220153431 HiF F &
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HXEREEBEEZERBEK (£)
(Continued)
Credit risk EEERE
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of fii ¥ 5 R BE BT TR201553A31HE

the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at 31
March 2015 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the

6. S@WMIEA(#Z)

consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group had concentration of credit risk in relation to loans
receivable amounting to approximately HK$154,848,000 at
31 March 2015 (2014: approximately HK$153,026,000). The
largest borrower of the Group by itself and together with
the other four largest borrowers of the Group accounted for
approximately 10% and 44% respectively (2014: 10% and
44% respectively) of the Group’s loans receivable at 31 March
2015. As at 31 March 2015, no loans receivable under current
assets are past due for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss as there has not been a significant change in
the credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable
based on historical experience. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management has reviewed the recoverable amounts
of the loans receivable regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

RBRE KRR -

Group’s credit risk on loans receivable is significantly reduced.

The Group also had concentration of credit risk as the Group’s
trade receivables as at 31 March 2015 of HK$9,833,000 (2014:
HK$9,941,000) was due from a few customers. At 31 March
2015, all trade receivables which were not yet past due except
for approximately 20% (2014: 15%) of these trade receivables
were past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting
period. The management considers that the credit risk of
these trade receivables is minimal as all are with long business

relationship.

=
)
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P 2 &mEERR A
RS 2 EEE L REE.
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Z SR {EE RS RE A 49154,848,000
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E 20153 A31 8 2 EWE 510% &
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20153A31H AFEERREEX
M AR IR 52 48 B iR B DA IR Bl fZ &
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FEU B k7 AT a4 58 - LARBR R AT UL
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
B E201543831 AL F R

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

102

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company continuously monitor the level of exposure to
ensure that follow-up actions and/or corrective actions
are taken promptly to lower exposure or even to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the management has reviewed the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
on trade receivables is significantly reduced.

In addition, the Group has credit risk on its liquid funds at the
end of the reporting period. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
majority of the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies and
banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations. The management also monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

At 31 March 2015, the Group has available unutilised bank
loan facilities of approximately HK$74,041,000 (2014:
HK$115,178,000).

6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

BHZE2015F3H31HILFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €WMIA(
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HM¥EMREEEEZEREX(£Z)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HBELEE ()
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TR AEB zeRBEZFGBEL
maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivative financial FIEREARR - BLIEVTE SR BEM = * &
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the FRIEASEE R E RN RO RR R
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the AMerBERTRRESREI T

earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

Liquidity risk tables HEE R
Weighted  On demand
average or Total Carrying
effective less than 3 months 1t05 5t019 undiscounted amounts at
interest rate 3 months to 1 year years years  cash flows 31 March
mETHE  RROAE KBRS  RIASMA

BRNZ  ONfER  EAEIE 125% 52195  RELE  ZKEE
% HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
% TET TET TEL TET TET TEL

2015 20155
Non-derivative FTEeREs
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables B REMERTE N/A 33,038 9,211 - - 42,249 42,249
TEA
Secured bank borrowings BERERIEE 243 18,216 908,286 184,201 540,030 1,650,742 1,537,826
51,254 917,497 184,201 549,039 1,701,991 1,580,075
2014 20145
Non-derivative FHiESHEE
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables B REMERFE N/A 29,984 17,341 - - 47325 47325
TER
Secured bank borrowings BRERAEE 2.59 19,872 59,695 1,377,005 444277 1,900,849 1,741,162

49,856 77,036 1,377,005 444277 1,948,174 1,788,487
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H1EFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

104

Fair value c. AY¥YE
(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are () WRELEMHBEEZLFEFIEZ
measured at fair value on a recurring basis rEFEHBEEZ L FE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at REEHH»SREERNRERAR
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The following RAFEFE - TRBMER LA
table gives information about how the fair values of AR ETZEeMEEATE
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the (LEZR FAZEERTREA
valuation techniques and inputs used). Hg) ©
Valuation
Fair value techniques and
Financial assets Fair value hierarchy key inputs
SREE DFE DR ERR HERTREEHAHE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Available-for-sale 97,916 70,555 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active
investments 18 market
AftHERE RIERBTIS R L E
Investments held for 325,435 279,280 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active
trading ER market
BIEEERE RIEBMIS R HE
Financial assets - 28,622 Level 2 The fair value is determined
designated as at E2 4 based on the price that the

(i)

FVTPL
BRAFEFARRZ

counterparty financial institution

would pay to redeem the units
NRBeREESE TELKREND

ZERREERTFE

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 in
both years.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on recurring basis

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised costs in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

7.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the aggregate of the amounts received or
receivable in respect of property sales and garment sales, rental
income from property leasing, interest income from loan financing

EE

LEEBREFAMEHEERNKEE KB H
BYERSBA - KEEKBEN S KA R
BFEEEWRAZC WK Z A -

and building management fee income during the year. An analysis of AEBZEEBEAOMWT
the Group’s turnover is as follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Property sales VES kS 394,448 108,262
Garment sales BRIRSHE 172,082 96,969
Rental income EEWA 74,199 63,433
Interest income from loan financing KEERREF B A 8,025 6,546
Building management fee income BFEEEBRA 721 547
649,475 275,757
SEGMENT INFORMATION PEEH

Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, being
the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM?”), for the purposes
of resources allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods delivered or services provided. This
is also the basis of organisation, whereby the management has
chosen to organise the Group around differences in products and
services.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments include (i) property
investments, (ii) property development, (jii) investment in securities,
(iv) loan financing and (v) garment sourcing and exporting.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE AR A T

RERDERDBERANEMNE  2H|EAE
SETRRERREEBRITHRER (X2
REREE]) 2B DEFREmMRTL
RIGIRMH BRI RERZ H%E - E18
BREFEALABASBERRREZEZR -

NEBZ EERE2WRDIBEIEE  (\WERE -
()R - (i)FHIEE  (VERBE (V)
HEREORK-

105

Annual Report 2014/15 4F %



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

e BBRRME )

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B E2015F3731H I FF

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

8. ZEER(E)

(a) Segment revenue and results (a) PHEEEBERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results RISE R EWMAMBANMAREE 2 & %5
by operating and reportable segment: REENMT:
For the year ended 31 March 2015 Bt F2015%F3H31H It FE
Garment
Property Property  Investment Loan sourcing and
investments  development  in securities financing ex;;;ﬂing Eliminations Consolidated
tiR IR
NERE  NEBR 0 BERE  EFRE  LDAKR e &&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET TEn FEr FiET Tén FiEr FET
SEGMENT REVENUE AEELE
External sales IREHE 74,920 304,448 - 8,025 172,082 - 649,475
Inter-segment sales” PRERREE 2,503 9,295 - - - (11,798) -
77,423 403,743 - 8,025 172,082 (11,798) 649,475
RESULT iz
Segment result PEEE 82,585 85,990 126,573 7,768 (3,660) - 299,256
Unallocated corporate income  EAE 2 A &M 6,613
Unallocated corporate expenses A2 275 % (17,258)
Finance costs BEKA (45,042)
Profit before taxation B AR F 243,569
*  Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. M) *E EBREHEARITIISE X5
For the year ended 31 March 2014 B E20144F3H31H L FE
Garment
Property Property  Investment Loan  sourcing and
investments  development  in securities financing exggrgng Eliminations ~ Consolidated
FER
mERE  MEER BHREA BRRA AKX iz e
HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSOO  HKSODO  HKSUDO  HKSUDO  HKSUOO
FET FET FAET FET FET FAET FET
SEGMENT REVENUE PEERE
External sales IMRSEE ) 63,980 108,262 - 6,546 96,969 - 275,757
Inter-segment sales” PREBRHE" 1,321 = = = o (1,321) =
65,301 108,262 - 6,546 96,969 (1,321) 275,757
RESULT &
Segment resut NELE 92,935 19233 8,564 6,346 077 (@426 120575
Unallocated corporate income &R E2 2FMA 7917
Unallocated corporate expenses &/ 2 A AIHY (11,157)
Loss on deemed disposal of B AMENBAFZEE
subsidiaries (348,604)
Share of results of associates ~ DMEEE DA EE 295,145
Loss on deemed disposal of ~ BATEHENF ZEE
associates (333,884)
Gain from a bargain purchase 8 a8 Uik 2 i 308,202
Finance costs BAKK (14,358)
Profit before taxation B AR F 23,836

*

106

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015

BHZE2015F3H31HILFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. SDEEH (&)
(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued) (@) PEHEXEBRFEE(
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the LABFESFT AL - A2 & 5 EB 2 & AT B B
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. RNEEZ FETERER - EEERE
Segment results represent the profit earned (loss incurred) by EDERMzwF (BEE2EE) &
each segment without allocation of certain interest income, BESEETHEWA ARIAZ R
corporate expenses, loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries, ABHEWB AR ZEE  HEBE AT
share of results of associates, loss on deemed disposal of ¥E - RALHEHME AR ZEE KA
associates, gain from a bargain purchase and finance costs. R E 2 W R E R o AL AT 2
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of MEBLERREZR ERERDE
resource allocation and performance assessment. MERBEFHz22E-
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) PEEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities EREREMABAINAEB 2 EER
by operating and reportable segment: BEMT:
At 31 March 2015 R20154¢3531H
Garment
sourcing
Property Property  Investment Loan and
investments  development in securities financing exporting  Consolidated
RBR
nERE NERE RERE EXpE HORK &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
ASSETS EE
Segment assets PREE 2,845,316 1,726,756 423,356 155,727 8,387 5,159,542
Bank balances and cash ROEBERS 378,520
Unallocated corporate assets ENRAREE 45526
Consolidated assets GREE 5,583,588
LIABILITIES BE
Segment liabilities PERE 41,075 52,354 30 130 3413 97,002
Secured bank borrowings BEERIEE 1,537,826
Tax payable FERHE 29,615
Deferred tax liabilities BRERBERE 16,854
Unallocated corporate liabilities ENRZARERE 7,492
Consolidated liabilities RAEE 1,688,789

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE AR A T
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e BRI o)

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B E2015F3731H I FF
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. ZoEER(Z)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) b) PBEERAEG(E)
At 31 March 2014 R20144#3531H
Garment
sourcing
Property Property Investment Loan and
investments  development in securities financing exporting ~ Consolidated
RER
NERE NEER EARE EXpE HARKR A
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
AT TET TET TAT TAT FHET
ASSETS Bz
Segment assets PREE 2,529,352 1,566,680 378,462 154,199 6,515 4,635,208
Bank balances and cash ROEBRAS 601,139
Unallocated corporate assets AR AREE 46,702
Consolidated assets GAEE 5,283,049
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities PHEEE 38,170 21,259 35 130 2,663 62,257
Secured bank borrowings BERROEE 1741,162
Tax payable ERHIE 16,176
Deferred tax liabilities BEREAE 12,735
Unallocated corporate liabilties Nl RRAAE 6,454
Consolidated liabilities Faafk 1,838,784

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than unallocated bank and cash
balances and assets used jointly by operating and

reportable segments.

- all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than secured bank borrowings, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and liabilities for which
operating and reportable segments are jointly liable.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE G R 2 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

B ZE2015F3731H 1F FZ
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8 7
(c) Other segment information (c) EHEthnEEH
For the year ended 31 March 2015 B 220153531 H IEFE
Garment
sourcing
Property Property  Investment Loan and
investments development in securities financing exporting  Unallocated Consolidated
FER
NERE  NEER BFRE EXRE  HOAX BAE &A
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FiET TE7n F#r FET TE7n FiEr FET
Amounts included in the BRREAREEY
measure of segment assets PREEHELEE:
or segment result:
Capital additions BARE 296,012 436 - - 179 - 296,627
Depreciation of property, nE BERXEINE
plant and equipment 1,223 444 - - 44 - 1,711
Gain arising on changes infair &% 2 A ¥
value of investment properties £ &Mz (26,370) - - - - - (26,370)
Gain on fair value change of H’E BEREZ
investments held for trading ATEEHYE - - (114,288) - - - (114,268)
Gain on fair value change o~ BATEFAREZ
financial assets designatedas £ B &E 2 AFE
at FVTPL e - - (411) - - - (411)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 B 220143831 HIEFE
Garment
sourcing
Property Property  Investment Loan and
investments  development  in securities financing exporting  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
RER
NERE  MERR EHRE EXRE HORX BENE ma
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FHET FAT FET FHET FAT FET
Amounts included in the BEENEEEY
measure of segment assets PREEHELEE:
or segment result:
Capital additions BARE 3,088 - - - - - 3,088
Depreciation of property, nE BERXEINE
plant and equipment 1,119 41 - - 21 - 1,657
Gain arising on changes in fair &9 £ 7 ATE
value of investment properties £ 8tz (40,714) - - - - - (40,714)
Loss on fair value change of ~ #% 1‘5 BEREYC
investments held for trading ATELHER - - 3,359 - - - 3,359
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
B E2015F3731H I FF

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(d)

(e)

110

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (place of
domicile), PRC and Singapore.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on
location of its customers and information about the Group’s
non-current assets (excluding available-for-sale investments,
loans receivable and deposit and prepayments for a life
insurance policy), analysed by the geographical area in which
the assets are located, are as follows:

(d)

Revenue from

HEDEER

REE 2 EBIREE (E8) - PE
Ko gz -

BINREP Z R TIHE D A KB 2 &
RELREECHELRE DDA
SEZFRPDEE (TREATHLER
B RUERURASREZRERE
5) 2 ERIT :

Carrying amounts

external customers of non-current assets
REIREFZEXER FRBEEZREE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT FHExT FHT
Hong Kong &% 466,142 172,646 2,414,668 2,176,083
PRC i 7,772 2,509 246,251 212,113
Singapore s 3,479 3,633 136,044 171,401
The United States of X &
America 137,592 81,570 - -
Europe BUM 34,490 15,399 - =
649,475 275,757 2,796,963 2,559,597
Information about major customers e) EEEXFZER

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as
follows:

EEREETEERMANEEALEER
B10%IA E 2 EEBIMT

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$000

FETT FET

Customer A' BEPA 129,888 78,335

Customer B? =FEB - 36,791
L Revenue from garment sourcing and exporting. 1 KEFEEREAOKKZE¥ERE-

2 Revenue from property development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 220153431 HiF F &
9. LOSS ON DEEMED DISPOSAL OF ASSOCIATES

During the year ended 31 March 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company subscribed for convertible note issued by
Easyknit Enterprises, a then associate of the Group in which the
Group had 36.27% equity interest. The convertible note could be
converted into shares of Easyknit Enterprises at any time during
the conversion period (being the period from the date falling on
the issue date up to and including the date falling on the fifth last
business day prior to the maturity date) at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.68 (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments) per share.
Details of the subscriptions are set out in the circular dated 20
February 2014 issued by the Company. Since completion of the
subscription on 27 March 2014, the Company, through its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, has the existing rights, including potential
voting rights, that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of Easyknit Enterprises. After considering the potential
voting rights arising from the convertible note, the Company’s
shareholding in Easyknit Enterprises increases from 36.27%
to 57.40%. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group obtains control in Easyknit Enterprises after considering
the potential voting rights arising from the convertible note, and
as a result, Easyknit Enterprises ceases to be an associate of the
Group on 27 March 2014 and has since been accounted for as a
subsidiary of the Company as from that date. The Group’s interests
in Easyknit Enterprises were re-measured based on the fair value of
the shares of Easyknit Enterprises held by the Group at 27 March
2014. Accordingly, a loss on deemed disposal of HK$333,884,000
was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2014, which included release of translation reserve and investment
revaluation reserve amounting to HK$1,310,000 and HK$268,000
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

11.

BHB2015F3A31HIFFJE
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BE KA
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE
- wholly repayable within five years —“REFREBHEE 32,909 21,659
- not wholly repayable within five years —TNERAFANBEEE 12,133 11,946
45,042 33,605
Less: Amount capitalised in properties JBRAFHELEEE
held for development for sale MEERNMb 2 &5 - (19,247)
45,042 14,358
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 11. XEEER
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Profit for the year has been arrived at REERMB N :
after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (note 12(a)) EEMWE (HiE12a) 8,977 6,506
Other staff costs, including retirement H A B TR -
benefits costs BIERREFIBAR 22,417 40,637
Total staff costs BIRKALER 31,394 47,143
Amortisation of premium and other expenses BERASREZIREB R
charged on a life insurance policy HAh s 2 B8 279 277
Auditor’s remuneration =SR2 3,148 2,501
Cost of inventories and properties BERARYIZ
recognised as expense TFERA R 405,467 133,793
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment YE - BERSEIITE 1,711 1,557
and after crediting to other income: W E R EMBAGTA
Dividend income from listed investments REEMRE ZRBIKA 11,593 9,710
Bank and other interest income RIT R EH A F) B HA 6,224 2,742
Interest income from deposit and REASRERS R
prepayments for a life insurance policy TR FIBMA 376 375
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

BE2015F3H31HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EE EETHEARREECZHE
EMOLUMENTS
(@) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (@) FHRESEHezER

HZE2015F3A3 A L FEARRAIES

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for the

year ended 31 March 2015 are as follows: & aFIEA T -
Non-executive Independent
Executive director director non-executive director
HIES FATES BUHTES
Kwong
Jimmy Lui Koon Tse Wing Lai Jong Tsui Hon
Cheung Yuk Ho Yan Chiu, Law Koon Chun Tam
Tim Chu Candy Ricky Kau Sang Kong Chun Total
BRI Ei% BT B RER 1353 #ES BEE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7 FET TEx FET FE7 FET TEx FET FE%
Fees e - - - 260 260 130 130 130 910
Other emoluments At
- salaries and other benefits —%4 R E 127 1,920 5,384 624 - - - = = 7,928
- retirement benefits —RIVERIFH I
schemes contributions 12 9 31 - - - - - 139
Total directors’ emoluments  EZ 4 EF 1,932 5,480 655 260 260 130 130 130 8977

HZE2014F3A31B L FEARARAIES

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for the

year ended 31 March 2014 are as follows:

MEFIFmT:

Non-executive Independent
Executive director director non-executive director
BITEE FNTES BUFNTES
Kwong
Jimmy Lui Koon Tse Wing Lai Jong Toui Hon
Cheung Yuk Ho Yan Chiu, Law Koon Chun Tam
Tim Chu Candy Ricky Kau Sang Kong Chun Total
BRA ZI% AR Ak fict3se R4 HEE #E et
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET TET TET FET TET TET FET FET TET
Fees E3hg - - - 185 ] 125 125 125 603
Other emoluments EfoBie
- salaries and other benefits  — %4 % £ {177 1470 3,861 468 - - - - - 5,799
~ retirement benefits —RIVERIEH B
schemes contributions 12 69 23 - - - - - 104
Total directors’ emoluments £ £ 4 2% 1,482 3930 491 185 43 125 125 125 6,506

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is also the Chief Executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE G R A 7

B RRNFEETRAR R Z BRETTHEE
REAEHEZ e BEBIERERET
BB PR 2 BR75 o

113

Annual Report 2014/15 4F %§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

e BRI o)

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’ 12
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Information regarding employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
included two (2014: two) directors. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2014: three) highest paid individuals, not
being directors, are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits e MEMBET]

Performance related incentive payments B R IR 2 SBIIE 1 3%

Contribution to retirement benefits RIREF B
schemes

Ex BERETBRARREEZME (&£

(b) FHEEMEzEHR

FR - AEEREARSHFATERERE
(2014F M B)EE - HHp =% (2014
FZR)WHEEZER T AL ZE
Ea N

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT FHT
5,503 4,505

- 25,000

104 86
5,607 29,591

The emoluments of these employees fall within the following

ZEREZHMEN T THIEE :

bands:
Number of individuals
EEA"

2015 2014
Nil to HK$1,000,000 221,000,000/ 7T 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,0017% 7T 24,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$25,000,001 to HK$30,000,000 25,000,0015% 7T 230,000,0007% 7T - 1
3 3

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors and the other three (2014: three) highest paid
individuals, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss in office. In addition, during both
years, no director waived any emoluments.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEFEEE AR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

mEMBWRHE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B Z2015F3731H 1F FZ
13. TAXATION CHARGE 13. BIEMX
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
The charge comprises: F B35 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFEH
Charge for the year REZREZ 16,070 5,209
Under(over)provision for prior years BAFETE (B BE 709 (209)
16,779 5,000
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions H b RE S| 2 Bi1E
Charge for the year REERE 180 251
Overprovision for prior years BT FEBERE (85) (95)
95 156
16,874 5,156
Deferred taxation (note 317) EIERLIE (K72231)
Charge for the year REEREZ 4,089 1,545
20,963 6,701

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profit for the year.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profit for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

&AM BB IR A F ZFE 5T IR B A LA
16.5% (20144 : 16.5% )5t H o

REFEAREMBAMGEEMSRE ([
EEFE]) ROEMESHREZ EIIESD

R B 2 ME A T 520081 1HE 2 i &R
525% o

R S [ 77 o 8] 6 &2 P 30 8 B R T 0 ) - 2R
et B EAEE -

o 7551 2 BIA T RARRE ALE 2 TR
KitHo

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE G R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A MERRIEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

13. TAXATION CHARGE (Continued) 13. BiEMX (£&)

Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the results per the

REERBEMX GRS ER MEMEERE

116

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive REBZHEEWNT :
income as follows:
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FEIT
Profit before taxation R B B v ) 243,569 23,836
Tax charge of Hong Kong Profits Tax at REBFEH T E16.5%
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (20144 : 16.5% >Z%ﬁlﬁﬁ;ﬁ§z 40,189 3,933
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax ~ NEHFI RIS 2 FiTEF £
purposes 14,317 115,900
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax MR A 2B E
purposes (31,662) (65,873)
Tax effect of share of results of associates DMEBE R R B HIERE - (48,699)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBMBEBEZHBYE 2,904 3,300
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously 8 BT RERFEEEZ
not recognised MIARE (7,301) (2,340
Under(over)provision for prior years BAEFETR (BE) BE 624 (304)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries REAMAEEEZME QT
operating in other jurisdictions MEER & 1,892 784
Taxation charge for the year REEHIAR X 20,963 6,701

Annual Report 2014/15 4 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015

BHE2015F3H31HILFE
14. DIVIDENDS 14. K2
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Dividends recognised as distribution RERAEBAREZRE
during the year
Final dividend paid for financial year HZE2014F3A31H L HFE
ended 31 March 2014 of HK$0.10 per ZERRERE AEAR0.10% T
share (2014: HK$0.40 per share for (20144 : # =2013F3H31H
financial year ended 31 March 2013) LEFT B 2 B R%0.408 7T ) 7,942 31,768
Dividends proposed REER
Proposed final dividend for financial year & £20159F3A31H LI FE
ended 31 March 2015 of HK$0.10 per BEARHARERER0.10E T
share (2014: HK$0.10 per share for (20144 : # =2014F3A31H
financial year ended 31 March 2014) IEF B E B RR0.10# 7T ) 7,942 7,942

15.

The final dividend of HK$0.10 per share in respect of the year ended
31 March 2015 (2014: HK$0.10 per share) has been proposed by
the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the

shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual general EBRARRARRE 2B

meeting.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to

15. BREREZF

BHEE2015F3A31H [EFE 2 &%0.10
T 2 REIRR B (20144 - &EMR0.108 ) 2
HANREZZR T AREERRBFAS

RRAERER 2 BRERENTIRIEAT

owners of the Company is based on the following data: BRIETE:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Earnings for the purpose of basic HEREARRNM S 2 &F
earnings per share (profit for the year (RARRFIEM 2 ANFEHF)
attributable to owners of the Company) 202,867 13,036
2015 2014
Number of shares KRB E
Number of shares in issue during the year, FLETEESREAZFME 2
for the purpose of calculating basic RERNEEITROEBE
earnings per share 79,420,403 79,420,403

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there is no potential
ordinary shares of the Company outstanding during both years.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE G R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
mEMERREE 2

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

@)

118

In January 2011, each of the Company and Easyknit
Enterprises entered into an employment agreement with Mr.
Koon Wing Yee, to act as general manager of each of the
Company and Easyknit Enterprises for a salary of HK$50,000
per month which is adjusted to HK$150,000 per month
with effect from 1 April 2013. The employment agreements,
which constitute connected transactions, commenced on
21 February 2011 but may be terminated by either party at
any time by three months’ notice. The remuneration of Mr.
Koon Wing Yee as general manager of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2015 was HK$3,939,000 (2014:
HK$27,949,000), inclusive of performance related incentive
payments amounting to nil (2014: HK$25,000,000), and was
included in the “compensation of key management personnel”
in (d) below. Mr. Koon Wing Yee is the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu who is a director of the Company and is also one of
the beneficiaries under a family trust holding 36.74% (2014:
36.74%) equity interest of the Company at 31 March 2015.
She also holds 21.95% (2014: 21.95%) equity interest of the
Company through an entity wholly-owned by her.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group received
rental income totalling HK$888,000 (2014: HK$238,000) from
certain close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho
Yan Candy, directors and substantial shareholders of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group received
rental income of HK$1,248,000 (2015: nil) from a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Easyknit Enterprises when Easyknit
Enterprises was an associate of the Group. Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company, are also directors of Easyknit
Enterprises.

16. BFE

@)

Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEFEEE AR A 7
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R20M1EFE1A  ARRIEAXEEESH
HEKERETIEARE UAH
50,0008 IR AE AAEE RkHEEE
ZHERRIB . §2013F4 A1 B RFAEREE
150,000/ JT © 7% 1% 3 1 it 18 Ak B 28
X5 201162218 A% - Bal A
HAE A — A MERERG T = AR
T 4% 1F o B E201553 A31H IEF A
BKERLEEANEEZ BB &
733,939,000 7T (20144 : 27,949,000
BT BREBRRBEZEBENRE
% (20144F : 25,000,000% 7T) - RO &
BEUATAEZIEZEEEAEBZH
B AN-BEXkBEEAEERLLTZE
B EERLLARNRAEERTA
7201543 318 A AN A 7]36.74%
(20144F : 36.74% ) Em 2 R — &K
RERZHA BB R—MEEEHE
B2 EBEEBARNNT21.95% (20144 :
21.95% ) (R AN HE S o

REE2015F3A31B ILEE K& R
AR EERFTERREEH®RZ L
NEARZETETHER A WAL XL
888,000/ 7T (20144F : 238,000/ 7T ) °

REE2014F3A31H IEFE Bk E
BEAKREBERE N TR NEB YR
XKEBE—ME2EMNBEAAAS KA
1,248,00078 7T (20154 : &) - & £ %
TERBAMZETAEARAREERETE
BER HENAKEEEZES-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits HHEEEF

Salaries and other benefits e MEMBET

Contribution to retirement benefit RIREFEHEIME R
schemes

16.

HEALXS BEXS (#)

d EEEBEAEZHMH

EEREMTEERRENENZ M
-

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET TET
15,761 36,998
321 239
16,082 37,237

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee and the executive
directors, respectively, having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

EERIBITHAR ZBE 2 5! i HrEM
ZEERMTERRREMNALZRA
K58 meETE -

Easyknit International Holdings Limited X ZEIBEEBEHER A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
mEMEmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015

BHE2015F3H31 1L FE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. V¥ BERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
properties equipment vehicles Total
B -£E
HAME k&t AE M
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET T FET FET
COST AR
At 1 April 2013 2013F4 /18 49,562 3,208 1,482 54,252
Exchange realignment 0 5% - 1 5 6
Additions NE - 21 - 21
Transferred to investment properties EBREEREME (9,743) = = (9,743)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BREEHRBAR
(note 32) (Hi#32) - (308) (276) (584)
Deemed acquisition of subsidiaries 18 & BB A 7
(note 33) (H:#33) - 106 499 605
At 31 March 2014 72014F3A31H 39,819 3,028 1,710 44,557
Exchange realignment M 5% - - 2 2
Additions NE = 263 361 624
At 31 March 2015 720153 A31H 39,819 3,291 2,073 45,183
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Zit#T&
At 1 April 2013 2013F4A1H 3,033 2,796 621 6,450
Exchange realignment 0E 5 - 1 5 6
Provided for the year RNEFEHE 1,099 94 364 1,557
Eliminated upon transfer to EREREYERME
investment properties (309) - - (309)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BAEHNENBAT
(note 32) (Mzt32) - (180) (@793) (4593)
At 31 March 2014 2014F3A31H 3,823 2,711 717 7,251
Exchange realignment 0 5% - - 1 1
Provided for the year REZHEE 1,083 122 506 1,711
At 31 March 2015 72015F3A31H 4,906 2,833 1,224 8,963
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2015 72015F3A31H 34,913 458 849 36,220
At 31 March 2014 72014F3A31H 35,996 317 993 37,306

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE AR 2 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continveq)
A ERRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 2201543431 HiF F/&
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis according to the following useful lives:
Leasehold properties Over the duration of the leases or fifty
years, whichever is the shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 51to 10 years

The carrying value of leasehold properties shown above comprises:

Properties situated in Hong Kong under: I REBZ % :
Medium-term lease HREAFR A

M- BEREE (E)

EREIEWE BERRE HABSRER
BIATZAEAFEHETENE:

iz ok ES BNz FHRA+E
AREETE
R EBER 3E104F
B

RE 5Z104F
A EBOMEZEERERE:

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET

34,913 35,996

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the director of the Company
decided to transfer certain leasehold properties to completed
investment properties for future leasing purpose. Hence the
directors of the Company assessed the fair value of these leasehold
properties which are determined based on valuation performed by
independent qualified professional property valuer carried out at
the date of transfer, by reference to market evidence of transaction
prices of similar properties. As a result, leasehold properties with
a fair value of HK$24,000,000 were transferred to completed
investment properties upon change in use of the properties,
evidenced by end of owner-occupation as the Group entered into
an operating lease with an outsider, resulting in an increase in the
property revaluation reserve of HK$14,566,000.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFREBE AR A 7

REZ2014F3A31B L FE AR AIEHR
FTEESTHAMEZETRIEEMEER
AgHERR A AR ESTEHEMR
NYEZAFE WIHIREBY A EREE
MERNESMITRERBEYERIEBRZT
BRENEEAH®ETZEEMEE - Bt

REFTERERETMERERRE BX
EEDRA-ZINRALTITILSHLY RF
{B24,000,000/8 e 2 AL £ E R EE T
A Y B Y E (i 1HIE 1014,566,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

BE M BHRHEE o

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FAIR VALUE NS

At 1 April 2013 72013F4A1H
Exchange realignment e H R

Additions NE

Transferred from property, EEAYE BENEE

plant and equipment
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries 8 & & B A 7

(note 32) (ZH#t32)
Deemed acquisition of subsidiaries 8 /&Y i B A 7]
(note 33) (R K17333)

Increase in fair value recognised in A EZEHERR 2 A FEIE N
profit or loss

At 31 March 2014 7201443 A31H
Exchange realignment E H PR
Additions NE

Transferred to properties held for ~ EEEH{EHELEME
development for sales (note 22) (K1it22)

Transferred from properties EREREHEDE
held for sale

Reclassification BHHE

Increase (decrease) in fair value PIBRER 2 A FEEMN
recognised in profit or loss CRA)

At 31 March 2015 #201543 8318

18. REWHE
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
2 xEM BRES
REWE REWHE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
2,387,315 50,186 2,437,501
(1,832) 678 (1,154)
540 7,934 8,474
24,000 - 24,000
(567,033) (62,681) (629,714)
587,553 53,016 640,569
36,831 3,883 40,714
2,467,374 53,016 2,520,390
(11,688) 119 (11,569)
275,665 17,990 293,655
(76,334) - (76,334)
3,982 - 3,982
70,764 (70,764) -
26,731 (861) 26,370
2,756,494 - 2,756,494

1 2 2 Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEFEEE AR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

mEMBE|RIE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continuead)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March
2015 and 31 March 2014 have been arrived at on the basis of
valuation carried out as at these dates by the following independent
firms of qualified professional property valuers not connected with

18.

REWEE (&)

A& B 20153 A31H &2014F3A31H
ZIREMEAFEDIRATHEARNER LS
MEC B A EREEMEMBEMITNZE
HEEITEEZ EEEE -

the Group.

Name of valuer Location of investment properties
fHER{T & REWMEZFREH

Knight Frank Petty Limited PRC

HORIETRNIT B IR A A =

Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited Hong Kong

IR HT & E AT B R A R A A BB

DTZ Debenham Tie Leung (SEA) Pte Ltd Singapore

EAWIIE
All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value model and

are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The carrying value of investment properties shown above
comprises:

Property interests situated in Hong Kong IR &S 2 ¥

under:
Long lease REIME A
Medium-term lease H A AY

Property interests situated in the PRC LR B M fE as
under:
Medium-term lease f AR 4Y

Freehold properties situated in Singapore IR TN 2 R E

AEBEREREEHNBETRIES 2 11
B TIARFERAGFERINEREY
ETIEy

M ERE % FEERE:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHT
1,058,700 883,300
1,315,940 1,254,120
2,374,640 2,137,420
245,810 211,569
136,044 171,401
2,756,494 2,520,390

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE G R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

BABBRRME o

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 2201543431 HiF F&
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
the investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value

measurements is observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group Fair value
AEEREZRENE AFE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAEx
Commercial units in 1,847,200 1,572,700
Hong Kong
REBZ BHEEN
Residential units in 49,780 112,300
Hong Kong
RE#ZEEBM
Industrial units in Hong 477,660 452,420
Kong
RERZ TEBML

124
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Fair value
hierarchy

DYEER

Level 3

Level 3

Level 3

Valuation techniques and
key inputs
RERKRETERABE

Direct comparison method
- based on market
observable transactions
of similar properties and
adjusted to reflect the

locations and conditions of

the subject property

18.

REM=

TRINTIMAEEREDENRFEZER
(FFRIR - PR 2 fhEHlr Mg ABUE)
ARRBEABBZ IBRREES OHAF
BER(B12E3R) 2 ATEFFTE

Significant unobservable inputs

EATTEEBARE

BREBE-ARAENEL
TEABRER S LR
ARBBRNELERE

n

Direct comparison method
- based on market
observable transactions
of similar properties and
adjusted to reflect the

locations and conditions of

the subject property

BREBE-ARAENEL
TEABRER S LR
ARBBRNELERE

n

Direct comparison method
- based on market
observable transactions
of similar properties and
adjusted to reflect the

locations and conditions of

the subject property

BRUBE-ENES

TEABRER S LR
AR BRNELERE

n

Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEFEEE AR A 7

Price per square foot, using market
direct comparables and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size

of property etc., which is ranged

from HK$7,977 to HK$419,890 per
square foot (2014: from HK$7,143 to
HK$419,890 per square foot).
RETSEETLRNOREELEAR
HipERIERMEEER NEXE
ZBFARERE BFARNF1ITTH
TLE419,8907% 7T (2014F : GFHRN
T7,143%5 7541989078 71 )

Price per square foot, using market
direct comparables and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors such as age of building and size
of property etc., which is ranged from
HK$5,725 to HK$15,365 per squire foot
(2014: from HK$5,725 to HK$14,085
per square foot).
RETSEETLRNZEMLEURE
o ERIE R MR EN 2Bl R EKR N
E2BTHRER BTHRNTE,725
BT E153658 7T (20145 : BEAR
16,7258 7L E14,0855 7T

Price per square foot, using market
direct comparables and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors such as age of building and size
of property etc., which is ranged from
HK$3,101 to HK$5,176 per square foot
(2014: from HK$2,998 to HK$4,916 per
square foot).
RETSEETLRNZEMLEURE
o ERIE R MR EN 2Bl R EKR N
S FREE SLARNFE3I0
BLE51768 T (20145 : BEARN
2,998 T E4,9168 L)

Sensitivity
HRE

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher
the fair value.

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher
the fair value.

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher
the fair value.
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 220153431 HiF F/&

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group
S BZREMHE

Residential units in
Singapore

REMFZEEEM

Completed properties in
the PRC

KRB B M mE

Properties under
development in the
PRC

R ERTNE

Fair value
AYE
2015
HK$'000
TER

136,044

245,810

N/A

TEA

2014
HK$'000
TEL

171,401

158,553

53,016

Fair value
hierarchy

DYEER

Level 2

F2MR

Level 3

Level 3

£30
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Valuation techniques and
key inputs
REXTREERHAHE

Direct comparison method
- based on market

observable transactions of

similar properties

ERLEBE-ERRENEZ TER

MEAERRS

Income capitalisation of net
income with provisions
for reversionary income
potential

WAFBZRABRMOEL 3

TREBRNE N RER

Residual method - based on

income capitalisation of

net income and taken into

account the construction

costs that will be spent to

complete the development
BAMEE - ERIRAFREZ A

BRMUELE AR BRA

FRERA

18.

REW=
Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
EXTABRH S BRE
N/A N/A
TER
1. Capitalisation rate, which is 4.6% per ~ The higher the
annum (2014: 8.5% per annum). capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value.
BALE §FRA6% 20145 :8F ERftERR:
£85% ) ATERE
2. Market monthly rental rate, which is The higher the market
RMB12.13 per square meter (2014: monthly rental rate, the
RMB13.9 per square metre). higher the fair value.
mHBARE 8FHKBARK1213 TEEABERS"
T (20145 - §F K BARK139 ATEDR
)
1. Capitalisation rate, which is 8.5% per  The higher the
annum. capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value.
BALE BERB5% BRbERS
AFERIE
2. Market monthly rental rate, which is The higher the market
RMB13.9 per square metre. monthly rental rate, the
higher the fair value.
mEEAME BYARRARK3Y THEAMERS:
7T AFERS
3. Construction costs, which is RMB1,074  The higher the

per square metre. construction costs, the

lower the fair value.
BRERA BEARRARBI4T  BEKKRS:
ATEAE
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e BRI o)

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

19. AHHERE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong at REB LM ZRAES
market value BmE 97,916 70,555
20. LOANS RECEIVABLE 20. EWER
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Unsecured amount mEHEE
- guaranteed by outside parties and —HINRATERRIZ
bearing interest at a fixed rate of & 7 B E5% (20144 :
5% (2014: a fixed rate of 5%) per BEEEX 5%) 2 FFEFTE
annum 16,240 28,500
- bearing interest at a fixed rate ranging —HETERI%ET%
from 3% to7% (2014: a fixed (20144 : B E B X B5%E
rate ranging from 5% to 7%) per 7% ) 2 FREFE
annum 118,830 97,026
Amount secured by a property and LAMISIEER 2 2B R
bearing interest at a fixed rate of R E T B R5% 2 FFRHE
5% per annum 5,690 -
Amount secured by properties and LA IEERR 2 8 Rk
bearing interest at prime rate RREBNEHE 14,088 27,500
154,848 153,026
Less: Amount due from borrowers i BTRRRB B E 2 —FREIE
repayable within one year shown EECERERATRE
under current assets (100,831) (83,805)
Amount due from borrowers repayable BETRRIERBEEZ —Fi&
after one year shown under non- FEEE ZERERASRE
current assets 54,017 69,221
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

eV BHRRME )

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

20. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continuead)

21.

The management closely monitors the credit quality of
loans receivable and considers loans receivable amounting
to approximately HK$154,848,000 (2014: approximately
HK$153,026,000) that are neither past due nor impaired to be of
good credit quality based on historical settlement records. As at
31 March 2015 and 2014, no loans receivable under current assets
are past due for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss as there has not been a significant change in the credit quality
and amounts are still considered recoverable based on historical
experience.

All loans receivable are denominated in HKD, functional currency of
the relevant group entity, at the end of the reporting period.

DEPOSIT AND PREPAYMENTS FOR A LIFE INSURANCE
POLICY

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company entered into
a life insurance policy with an insurance company to insure Ms.
Koon Ho Yan Candy, a director of the Company. Under the policy,
the Company is the beneficiary and policy holder and the total
insured sum is US$10,800,000 (equivalent to HK$83,808,000). The
Company is required to pay an upfront deposit of US$1,283,000
(equivalent to HK$9,956,000) including a premium charge at
inception of the policy amounting to US$76,980 (equivalent to
HK$597,000). The Company can terminate the policy at any time
and receive cash back based on the cash value of the policy at the
date of withdrawal, which is determined by the upfront payment
of US$1,283,000 plus accumulated interest earned and minus
the accumulated insurance charge and policy expense charge
(“Cash Value”). In addition, if withdrawal is made between the first
to eighteenth policy year, there is a specified amount of surrender
charge. The insurance company will pay the Company an interest of
4.0% per annum on the outstanding Cash Value of the policy for the
first year. Commencing on the second year, the interest will become
2% per annum plus a premium determined by the insurance
company.

As at 31 March 2015, the deposit and prepayments for a life
insurance policy amounting to approximately HK$10,181,000 (2014:
approximately HK$10,084,000), with approximately HK$280,000
(2014: approximately HK$HK$279,000) being included in trade and
other receivables (see note 25), were pledged to a bank to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

The deposit and prepayments for a life insurance policy are
denominated in USD, a currency other than the functional currency
of the Company.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE G R A 7

20. EWERK( (#8)

21.

ERERTERERERZEELEERRA
8 B EA MR B 2 FE U B 30 49154,848,00075

7T (20144F : #7153,026,000/8 7T ) % i@ X (&
BRAERIEEEZ - M2015F3A31H
N20145F3A31H  WREEE 2 EWERER
AELECBIEAEEN S ERREEIE
EEBEREEE R BEE ANE LIREFE
SRR IER AL SR A LA E] o

FRBERWE SN REMREAREEEER
ZIEEEBAETTIIE

ARREZEERAMNRK

REZ2013F3A31 B ILFfE » AR F)EH—FH
R AFIEINL—IBABRENIRRANARE
EEAMRZL -RIEZRE AR A AR
AMRERFB A K425 IR EE 410,800,000
7 (855 7°83,808,0007 7T ) ° &K A A)ZB X 1+
TE1 12 41,283,000% 7T (#855729,956,000/%8
TL) - BIERFMRERAEX T 2R E76,980
E 7T (HZ7597,0005% 7T) © AN A 7 7] AE
AR RAR IE X IR E MBI IRIREF X REZ IR
S EEREERS - It IR IR TER 5%1,283,000
ETRFBRE 257 B RINBRFHRE &
REBAMT ([REEE])METE LN
WRREF—FEFE+N\FRER BERE
SHIERERAYT -WREE—F  RBAF

IR EE ik 2 IR EBERF E4.0% X 1 F 8

FARAR -HE_FR FIEBEEFE2%
IAREAREE Z&E-

20153 A31H + ASRE RS RIERFK
£ #910,181,0007% 7T (20144F : 410,084,000
¥ 7T ) 0 E th 49280,000% JT (20144 : 47
279,000/ ) BIEEE 5 R E A EUGRIER
(RKizkes) BEBFRITIEAER FASE
E—RRITEEE 2B
ASRE LS RBEMNFKAERR R ERE
LASNZ B ZETTHIE
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

B Z2015F3731H 1 FF
22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE 22, BIELEREWE
Movements of properties held for development for sale are as FIELERRMEZEH T
follows:
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2013 720134 A31H 714,636
Additions NE 808,881
Borrowing costs capitalised BEREBEERA 19,247
At 31 March 2014 7201443 A31H 1,542,764
Additions = 256,497
Transferred from investment properties (note 18) R BRENE (Hit18) 76,334
Transferred to properties held for sale ERERHEHEYME (1,270,677)
At 31 March 2015 720153 A31H 604,918
At 31 March 2015, the properties held for development for 7201543 A31H  EATEHMEB N AEE
sale of approximately HK$604,918,000 (2014: approximately MEER PEEXRMANER  BFERHE
HK$1,542,764,000) included both properties held for development BERERTYVEZHIEEHEERYEN
and under development, and were included in the Group’s current 604,918,000/ 7T (20144F : #91,542,764,000
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position as it is BIT) R E AR RIMEREE 2R E
expected that the properties will be realised in the Group’s normal BE-
operating cycle for properties development.
At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group performed impairment 2015938310 &2014F3A31H ' A&
assessment on its properties held for development to assess BB EERYEETREN G 2FHA
their recoverable amounts with reference to valuations made by SEEBE BUAEREEMEGEMTT
independent qualified professional property valuers not connected ZEERHEE TR E & - ZSMEIIR
to the Group. The valuations were arrived at by using the residual BRSEEESE BRFHEEEME 2]
method. As the recoverable amounts of the properties held for WEeEeEaRNERREHRCEEE A2
development are higher than their carrying amounts as at the end of REERRZEMEETERRE-
the reporting period, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no impairment on these properties is considered necessary.
23. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 23. BHEEERE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FEIT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong at REB LM ZBRARTS &mE
market value 325,435 279,280

Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEFEEE AR A 7
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 220153431 HiF F/&
24. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR VALUE

25.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group acquired unlisted bond investments with a financial
institution in Hong Kong. The bond investments contain embedded
derivative, the interest rate of which was determined with reference
to the exchange rate of USD against RMB and ranges from 0.3% to
4.5% per annum. The embedded derivative was considered closely
related to the respective host contracts as it would not double
the Group’s initial return on the host contract when comparing to
the host contract without embedded derivative. Therefore it had
not been accounted for separately in the consolidated financial
statements. The bond investments were redeemed during the year.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables 2 5 I W KIE

Deposits paid to suppliers to be realised
within 1 year

Deposit and prepayments for a life

insurance policy (note 21)

Escrow deposits of properties held FIEHEMEZEERS
for sale

Prepayments SEANE S

Interest receivables JE U 2

Other receivables E fth U R IE

24.

25.

BAVEFARBCEREE

AEEREE —HMem#BBAELTES
KE-ZEHFREBRSANEITEEE BX
ZEENBEETLIARE 2 SRR R FF
EH0.3%E45% ° LECSBRNSHTHEBR Z
TERAY ARTENERAEBREBAY
2R RETEBE KRG AEE TR
AHNEBETRE - A T g R REe M ®RE
NBY R - ZEFREERFRERD -

MERER DN THRHERRSE

ABREZ B RBNR (H221)

B 5 R H At WK IE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TAET
9,833 9,941
2,000 343
280 279
77,205 -
1,049 3,678
1,006 1,486
2,398 3,521
93,771 19,248

The Group allows credit period of up to 20 days to its lessees and
up to 90 days to its other customers. The aged analysis of trade
receivables, based on invoice date which approximates revenue
recognition date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

0 - 60 days 0-60H
61 - 90 days 61-90H
Over 90 days BiH90H

AEBAFEABEAZEERRRE208 &
HAib & PiZ0R - REE I W ER BN
EERAH EZRWFTANRE BARZ R
DT :

2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
FET TAET
8,684 9,455
356 255

793 231
9,833 9,941

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE G R A 7
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A ERRIEE 2

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 2201543431 HiF F&
25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25, EZRHEHMEWREZ)

130

The management closely monitors the credit quality of trade and
other receivables and considers trade and other receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance at 31 March 2015
were debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,936,000 (2014: approximately HK$1,501,000) which were
past due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group has
not provided for allowance. The Group did not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which are past
due but not impaired:

Overdue by 1 to 60 days 2B H1£60H
Overdue by 61 to 90 days BB H61E90H
Overdue by over 90 days £ 38 HA#2 3890

EREERRERE SN EMBRRIBZEER
BEMBAHRBBHRREEZES R EME
WHIARBERIFEEE R

R2015F3A31H » AEE 2 & SR IB A
thep o BIRES AREES ££491,936,00078
7T (2014%F : 91,501,000/ 7T ) A @ EIER
Bt RBE AEBWSERZSHEHRITE
E AR o

BB HHE R 2 B 5 R EIE 2 BRI
T

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET TAET
787 1,015
356 255

793 231
1,936 1,501

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade receivables
that are past due are generally recoverable and as a result, no
allowance was made for trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period.

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

E v
AR®

USD
RMB

REASE ELER CBHEHRK
FIA—ARIGAI AN E] - B3 B R W IR
R E R E R

AEBUNERSEERIESE AN 2K
SMEZ B 5 M B it R YWRIR RS0 T -

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
4,583 5,271

3 2
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eV BHRRMEE o)

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

26. BILLS RECEIVABLE

At 31 March 2015, the bills receivables are aged within 60 days and
are denominated in USD.

27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short-term
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, at
prevailing market interest rates ranging from 0.001% to 4.8% (2014:
0.001% to 5.0%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group placed time deposits, amounting
to approximately RMB48,000,000 (equivalent to HK$59,606,000)
(2014: RMB60,300,000 (equivalent to HK$74,693,000)), with a
financial institution in the PRC with original maturity of three months.
The time deposits contain embedded derivative, the interest rate
of which is determined with reference to the exchange rate of USD
against HKD and ranges from 2.8% to 4.8% (2014: 3.3% to 5.0%)
per annum. The embedded derivative is considered closely related
to the host contract as it would not double the Group’s initial return
on the host contract when comparing to the host contract without
embedded derivative. Therefore it has not been accounted for
separately in the consolidated financial statements and is included
in “bank balances and cash” as at 31 March 2015.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

HKD BT
RMB AR
usD I

26.

27.

EWEE

R2015F3A31H [ E 1E 2 BR ik A60H
A& AZETTHIE -

RTERRRS
RITRREBEAEERFE RS UARIZR
1735 F | = H0.001% E4.8% (20144 :
0.001%%5.0% ) 2 = {E A k2 5% #3252 53

RITFR

R2015%F3A31H AEBE —HHH
% mh S ATl A R #548,000,0007T (4R
% 7259,606,000/% 70) (20144 : AR
60,300,0007T (48 55 7274,693,000/% 71) )Z
=EARBZz EHER EPFR =
PTHETEE ’/%\I%ngiﬁ%%%ﬁﬂ/%ﬁz
N R EFR R H2.8%54.8% (20144F :
33%E5.0%) cLERBANEHITEEB 2 E
BAH AR TENEAEERTEBANZ
LA B 7R - Qmiﬁa%ﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬁiEImA
NEEREE - AU TERREUBHRER
B RN D BEN20153A318 2 [4R17
HEHNMIRE ] A

AEBNERESEEREEB NI ZEE
FMEZ SRITHESR MR SHIINNAT -

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
117 72
29,397 13
11,301 14,135

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFREE G R A 7
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

B ZE2015F3731H 1 FF
28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. ESRHEMENSRE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Trade payables Z S IR 12,225 20,079
Commissions and rebates payable FERA S RITH 10,637 -
Construction costs payable JE TR EE K AR 3,933 7,308
Rental deposits received and g ek REKES
rental received in advance 23,782 20,416
Deposits received from sale of HETESEN 2 ERIZE
residential units 28,094 -
Property management fund payable ERYEEEES 8,230 6,807
Other taxes payable H b FERFETE 4,822 4,454
Interest payable FEATF B 1,781 1,538
Accruals and other payables TEIR R E A FET K08 10,990 8,109
104,494 68,711
The aged analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at the BIEZHEAM BHENRERREHRZ
end of the reporting period is as follows: RIS D ATZA T
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
0 - 60 days 0-60H 3,284 2,739
Over 90 days H3E90H 8,941 17,340
12,225 20,079
The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated in AEBUBBEEEREIEEE N B
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant group IWEZE S REMENFUEESINT
entities are set out below:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FEIT
usD T 19 42

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE AR A 7
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A EmRMEE 2

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B Z2015F3731H 1 FZ
29. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 20. HKHRITHEE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Carrying amount repayable as follows EEEZEREBENT
(based on the scheduled repayment (IRBEINE R pE
dates set out in the loan agreements): EEEERR) :
— within one year ——FR 902,767 34,602
— between one to two years ——EWEF 35,712 1,071,576
— between two to five years ——ZR%F 107,661 107,318
— more than five years —HBBRF 491,686 527,666
1,537,826 1,741,162
Comprising: BE:
Amount due within one year shown BERIRRBAGBEZ —FA
under current liabilities FHAE £ %8 902,767 34,602
Amount due after one year shown BRNIERBAR —F1&
under non-current liabilities D EfE T £ B 635,059 1,706,560
1,537,826 1,741,162
At 31 March 2015, the Group’s secured bank borrowings carried R2015F3A31H » AEE 2 BHKIFRITIEE
interest at HIBOR plus 1% to HIBOR plus 3.25%, with effective TABBRITRAZEF B IMBZERZEHRFEM
interest ranging from 1.24% to 3.49% (2014: 1.20% to 3.63%) per 3.25%HE - BEEFHETIHA1.24%£3.49%
annum. The loans are secured by investment properties, properties (20145 :1.20%£3.63% ) 2 EE 5K 5 A
held for development for sale, properties held for sale and deposit REEBZHREYE FEHEEEMERA
and prepayments for a life insurance policy of the Group (note 34). BRE 2 e RIEMNKIEAIRIE (MiFE34) -
The proceeds were mainly used to finance acquisition of investment FrisRIEF ZRENIBIREMEREREYE
properties and development of properties. ZEhE o
All bank borrowings are denominated in HKD, functional currencies RIFEBR ERITEEYURBERE
of the relevant group entities, at the end of the reporting period. Bl EEATIE.
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. B
2015 & 2014
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: JETE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 10,000,000,000/% & i% EI{H0.17%8 7T
2 E B 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BE#TRHYE -
79,420,403 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 79,420,403 & I I {E0. 178 7T
2 E B 7,942
There were no changes in the Company’s authorised, issued and KRRBIZIEE BT R R AT /M EF
fully paid share capital in both years. Bl E) -

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFREE G R A 7
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

B Fo01543531H IFFE
31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. EEHE

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

RAFEMBEFE 2O AT ERLERE
BE(BE) REZHNT:

years:
Accelerated
tax  Revaluation Tax
depreciation  of properties losses Total
ERERE B BIAE R s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2013 7201354 A1H 1,021 12,871 (904) 12,988
Exchange realignment IE X R - 177 - 177
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BREEHRBAR

(see note 32) (ZH1:#32) - (14,643) = (14,643)
Deemed acquisition of subsidiaries 18 &Y BB A &

(see note 33) (ZH1:#33) - 12,668 - 12,668
Charge (credit) to profit or loss RERME (Gt A) 23 1,595 (73) 1,545
At 31 March 2014 #201443A31H 1,044 12,668 977) 12,735
Exchange realignment I H R - 30 - 30
(Credit) charge to profit or loss Rz (GEA) Rk (53) 3,944 198 4,089
At 31 March 2015 7201543 A31H 991 16,642 (779) 16,854

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, the above deferred tax liabilities and assets have
been offset.

MEFEAMBHRRRM S LEEHIR
BEREECFERE-

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financing reporting purposes:

MIATERET = - EEHIBAERZ DT -

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHETT

Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE 16,854 12,735

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE G R 2 7
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 220153431 HiF F &
31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

32.

At 31 March 2015, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$105,162,000 (2014: approximately
HK$131,810,000) available for offset against future profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$4,721,000 (2014: approximately HK$5,922,000) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the remaining tax losses of approximately HK$100,441,000 (2014:
approximately HK$125,888,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profits streams. The Hong Kong tax losses of approximately
HK$84,660,000 (2014: approximately HK$113,256,000) can be
carried forward indefinitely and the remaining tax losses will expire
from 2015 to 2019 (2014: 2015 to 2017).

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

As at 1 April 2013, the Group had 43.52% equity interest in the
issued share capital of Easyknit Enterprises. EE Group has been
accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2013 as the management of the Company considered that the
Group had control over EE Group. On 24 September 2013,
Easyknit Enterprises completed a placing of new shares of which
the Company did not subscribe and this resulted in the Group’s
equity interest in EE Group being decreased from 43.52% to
36.27%. Based on an assessment of facts and circumstances, the
directors of the Company considered that the other shareholders
had increased influence to the decision of relevant activities of and
voting power over Easyknit Enterprises, and concluded that the
Group lost its control over EE Group as from 24 September 2013.
As such, EE Group became associates of the Group with effect
from 24 September 2013 and have since been accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014
using the equity method of accounting until Easyknit Enterprises
subsequently became a subsidiary of the Company on 27 March
2014 as detailed in note 33. The fair value of the equity interest
retained in EE Group on the date when control was lost amounting
to HK$46,619,000 was recognised as deemed cost of acquisition of
interests in these associates. The excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the associates’ identifiable assets and liabilities over
the deemed cost of the investment amounted to HK$298,671,000
and was included in the share of results of associates for the year
ended 31 March 2014.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE AR A T

31.

32.

R2015F3A31H  AEBE B KRB A EEIE
/105,162,000 7T (20144F : 49131,810,000
BIT)  ATRAREEAR IR - R HIBEE
4,721,0007% 7T (20144 : 5,922,000 7T) &
ERAELEHIBEE AR REE KK &
FImA - MO £ TR 82 T 49100,441,00078 7T
(20144F : 49125,888,0005 70 ) 7 T B E1E A
EIER I & B - & 75 T T8 /B 18 484,660,000
7 7T (20144 : #9113,256,0005% 7T ) A £ [R
% I E AT TE 1R 15 70 2015F £20194F
(20144F : 2015F £20174 ) El| 8 -

BAEHENB LR

R2013F4 818  AEEF B KEEXDH
IR 2 43.52% I AN 26 o AN BB IR E R
AAEEBEXKEEEEB 2T kBT
¥EFENAEEEH E2013E3A31B LFE
AU RRREERALAEB B AT -
2013F9A24 1 sk E B HEFEKALEFARD
MARRRERBL ERAEBMP KBEEE
&£ B 7 RARRE 25 H143.52% ) £36.27% ©
REEFERBERZTE ARAREEREHE
AR R BNk HE B EMREE RICEE
TREFEN RETEAREER 52013598
ARRBAEKEEEEB 2SI -BiL- 8
2013F9A24H B A BEXEEARALER
ZEENRI R B R E E2014F3A318 2
GAMBRRUNERZLERE EEXKEETE
B& 1% 10 BT 5133FT # 201443 A27 A ik A7
PNEIZ M B A E R EIEHIE  RE R K
EEEEBRAHER 2 A FE46,619,00078
THERASRER L DR 2R AR K
EESMEBE AR HAEERABELATE
SFRER LI E 2 1R AR ZN298,671,0007% 7T &
ERECEHE014F3A31BILERERZD
=) NI E (A
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

BHE2015F3H31HILFE
32, DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 32. RAHEWBAR (&)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of EE Group as at the date KEEFESENEERRCEERBREE
of disposal were as follows: R
2014
HK$'000
FAET
Property, plant and equipment I EN SR 131
Investment properties LEMHE 629,714
Loans receivable JEWE X 17,500
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E M ERFRIA 23,508
Investments held for trading FHIEEEIRE 103,134
Bank deposit with original maturity of HBiE =& A BB 2 RITTF K
more than three months 130,000
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 244,691
Trade and other payables B 5N EMENFIE (28,956)
Bills payable ANEE (1,553)
Tax payable FE B8 (6,909)
Secured bank borrowings BEMBITEE (165,335)
Deferred tax liabilities BEIEA G (14,643)
Net assets disposed of HEBEFRE 931,282
Net loss on deemed disposal: BRELEZBEFE:
Net assets disposed of LEEEFE (931,282)
Non-controlling interests eI 525,988
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of REEWBRARIESIRME AR EE
the net assets of the subsidiaries reclassified from FHEBRHELEZEAERET
equity to profit or loss on loss of control of subsidiaries HEiEn 10,071
Fair value of the equity interest retained in EE Group, REBRABREEEBRAEEZ AT
based on share price of Easyknit Enterprises at the B BREBEXKBEENHEAHZKRE
date of disposal 46,619
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries BEHEHRBARZEIE (348,604)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: REHEZRE ML FHE:
Bank balances and cash disposed of HECIRITEBREA S (244,691)

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE AR A 7
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B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

33. WKEMELT

As set out in note 9, upon completion of the Company’s
subscription of convertible note issued by Easyknit Enterprises,
Easyknit Enterprises and its subsidiaries ceased to be associates of
the Company and have been accounted for as subsidiaries of the
Company since 27 March 2014.

The above acquisition of subsidiaries has been accounted for using
the acquisition method. The Group obtained control over Easyknit
Enterprises on 27 March 2014, on which date the bargain purchase
gain was HK$308,202,000. EE Group was mainly engaged in
garment sourcing and exporting, property investment, loan
financing and investment in securities at the date of acquisition.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed which were recognised
on 27 March 2014, the date of acquisition, were as follows:

WM EEOFTEL MR AR R 2 RIEKETE
BT AR R - B§2014F3 A27H B KE
BEXERENBRARTTHBAARRZHE QR
NIRRT Z W B AR -

L Z KB B AR Ty AR EESE AR -
201453 A27TH AEBESKEEE ZIE
#l - A E B 2 15 WHE U & £308,202,000/%8
TokBEBEEETENERFERHOMKK
MERE BRMERBLHREES-

RUEE B #i2014F3 A27HE R 2 W EE &
ENAEAGBNT

2014

HK$'000

FETT

Property, plant and equipment W B R 605
Investment properties HEME 640,569
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 16,139
Loans receivable FEUR B K 17,500
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E M ERFIE 9,707
Investments held for trading FHIEEBERE 86,902
Financial assets designated as at FVTPL BRATESFAERZZEREE 28,622
Bank balances and cash (note) RITEBRIRE (K1) 589,458
Trade and other payables B 5K EMENFIR (23,296)
Tax payable FEI B8 (6,909)
Secured bank borrowings BEMIBITEE (161,902
Deferred tax liabilities FEBIEAG (12,668)
1,184,727

Note: The amount included net proceeds of convertible note of
HK$99,455,000 contributed by the Group.

The net assets shown above did not include the carrying amount of
liability component of convertible note amounting to HK$54,047,000
and the related deferred tax liabilities of HK$7,586,000 as the
convertible note was held by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company at the time of the acquisition.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFREE G R A 7

Kt ZeBeeRAEERME T TRRERE
FT15 5% 78 /% %699,455,000 /& 7T ©

HRAERE RS RREEAAARZ
—HE2EMBRRMARE RN EAMBERZ
BEFEATBREABEREZBERD
AR {854,047,000 /8 7T MARBIRL IR R (E
7,586,000 7 T ©
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B 22015F3H31H1EFE

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

33. WEBKWEAR (&)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of
the receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade and
other receivables and loans receivable) approximate to the gross
contractual amounts, the best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows of the receivables which were expected to
be collected. Such acquisition results in a bargain purchase gain
due to the fact that fair value of shares of Easyknit Enterprises was

RRARZEERR WBEEFA(ZER
BESREMRETIAREKER) 2 AF
BHEAGAVSFERY IDARKE R A
Hm 2 EIRRIR 2 A IR M E 2 RIER
&t o Lk W B P B B 7 1hh W R T R R UK
BEXRNZAFERERERNEEA#SZ
EWEEEFE

much less than the net assets acquired at the date of acquisition.

Bargain purchase gain arising on acquisition:

KA YRR 2 R R s

138

2014
HK$'000
FEr
Consideration transferred: REEE:
— Fair value of previously held interests of 36.27% in — R AKEE X627 NEE L
Easyknit Enterprises NEE 61,322
— Subscription of convertible note —REE AR iR 99,455
160,777
Plus: Non-controlling interests (63.73%) measured at 0 FEVEARHERS (63.73% ) " IR KB E
proportionate share of the fair value of identifiable FUHNEEFEZATFERL
net assets of Easyknit Enterprises Bl Gt = 715,748
Less: Net assets acquired O BB B ESE (1,184,727)
Bargain purchase gain (credited to profit or loss) wEBE R E (BT AER (308,202)
Net cash inflow on acquisition: Wi REeMAFEE:
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BREzZRERERRE 589,458
Less: Cash paid for convertible note J SRR R 2 BENE S (99,455)
490,003

Revenue and profit for the year ended 31 March 2014 attributable to
EE Group subsequent to the acquisition were insignificant.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2013, total group
revenue and profit for the year ended 31 March 2014 would had
been HK$328,944,000 and HK$10,939,000 respectively. The pro
forma information was for illustrative purposes only and was not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 April 2013, nor was it intended to be a
projection of future results.
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B ZE2015F3731H 1F FZ
34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 34. EEEH
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the Group RWERAR - REEERTRITERERT
were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities granted to the AEEGEHBEEZEERAT:
Group:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Investment properties LEMHE 1,862,400 1,818,000
Properties held for development for sale  #H{EHEREYE 336,027 1,246,165
Properties held for sale REHEME 1,020,567 =
Deposit and prepayments for a life ASRE 7% RIERMRK
insurance policy 10,181 10,084
3,229,175 3,074,249
35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 35. REMHRH
The Group as lessee AEBEEREEA
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Minimum lease payments recognised in R & AR B R 2 &IEBLI R
profit or loss during the year 2,083 1,861
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for RMEHAR  AEEBE AT EHELEHL
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating ZARREARM A FAAEER T
leases which fall due as follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year —%FR 2,097 398
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEERERN(BEEEMSE) 334 93
2,431 491
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group KERNNTERNEEREETRAERE
for certain of its office premises and directors’ quarters. Leases are EEFZEMNES HOHBEAR—EMF
negotiated for terms of one to two years (2014: one to two years). (20145 : —ZWF) ©
Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments are REAEET 24 BONRELEET
fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent R BEAT IS AE S TR B

rental payments.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE AR A T 1
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B 2201593531 HIFF &
35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) 35. RBEMORHE (&)
The Group as lessor AEEEBHEA
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Property rental income earned RERNBRIZ MERS KA
during the year 74,199 63,433
Less: Outgoings JB 2 (6,897) (2,509)
Net rental income WA FHE 67,302 60,924

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year —FA
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Over five years HBBRF

E_EERFRN(BEEEMSE)

RIEHR  AEBEBE PRI LIA TR R&IER

E=d

B K
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
64,384 63,066
34,349 52,822
9,627 3,433
108,360 120,221

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments are
fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent
rental payments. The properties held have committed tenants for
terms of one to seven years (2014: one to seven years).

At 31 March 2015, operating lease rentals committed by close
relatives of certain directors of the Company amounted to
HK$630,000 (2014: HK$1,518,000) which fall due as follows:

—5R

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

F_EFLF (BREEMF)

REAEBFIZ 2B BONRBEE LI E
AVSAEEMRLF - HENEZHORH—

EHEQ014E: —FLF) -

R2015F3A318 AR AIHE FTEE Z #E A&
& E S 2 5630,0007%8 T (20144 -
1,518,000)  HARR 40 T~

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT FHT
630 888

= 630

630 1,518

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE AR A 7
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B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

37.

Capital expenditure contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of:

— property, plant and equipment
— investment properties

36. EAREKIE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
BERTAE M AR E T ERERF

B BERRAL:
o JE NN 7,905 10,045
—REME 764 14,311
8,669 24,356

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group had defined contribution retirement scheme (the
“Retirement Scheme”) for its employees and the assets of the
Retirement Scheme are held under provident funds managed by
independent trustees. With effect from 1 December 2000, the
Retirement Scheme has become a “Top Up” scheme to supplement
the minimum benefit under the mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all the eligible employees of the Group in
Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to contribute
5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and
they can choose to make additional contributions. The employer’s
monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s
monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory
contributions”). The employees are entitled to 100% of the
employer’s mandatory contributions upon their retirement at the age
of 65, death or total incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to
make the required contributions.

The aggregate employers’ contributions which have been dealt with
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2015 amounted to
approximately HK$865,000 (2014: approximately HK$561,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the total amount of forfeited
contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in the
future years was insignificant.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFREE G R A 7

37.

RKE R E

AEBEZRBREATHFKRAREFE ([E
RatEl]))  BRRFTEIZEER —BIUEIEA
EREELIEAE - H20006F12 A1 B £ - B IRET
Bk A EHIABUBEALREERE
EETE A BB T i a% L HIKFI2 2 58
AEEHE ([BESTE) -

REELHEIT EEARESAFTSHR
5%k % 51,5005 0 BB I Al iRIE(EL
BHIMIR - EEEBAMRRABREEBZEBAS
SETEH 5% &% 21,5000 7T (38
MHFR]) B BR655EREF SR T HTE
ERITARENR AZEHEEMEHERRZ
100% ©

RAEBEZMBARZEERPERNRIZ
BREBRAE A EIKE - HIERRARS
EETEDHLRRKRSFEIHK NEEZ
BEEER/MERSFEELAHRE K-

KRB E2015F3A31B L FERIERRR 2
1B == L B8 58 5 49865,00078 7T (20144 : 49
561,000 7T ) °
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Bt 220154331 HiF F/&
38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

142

The Company

On 18 February 2002, a share option scheme (the “2002 El
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company. The
2002 El Scheme, which is valid for a period of 10 years, expired
on 18 February 2012. On 5 July 2012, a new share option scheme
(the “2012 ElI Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of
the Company. Under the 2012 ElI Scheme, the directors of the
Company may at their absolute discretion grant options to all
directors (including any executive and non-executive directors),
full-time employees and consultants of the Group to subscribe for
shares in the Company. The 2012 El Scheme is valid for 10 years
commencing 5 July 2012, unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 ElI Scheme are to encourage eligible
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 ElI Scheme
must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of adoption
of 2012 El Scheme. The overall limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options granted and yet to
be exercised under the 2012 El Scheme and other share options
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates
shall be subject to the approval of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or any of their respective associates, would
result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted to such person in the
12-month period representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares
of the Company issue and having an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of options shall be
subject to shareholders’ approval with the connected persons of the
Company abstaining from voting.
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B 22015F3H31H 1L FE
38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 38. EREHE(E)
The Company (Continued) AT (&)

Subject to the aforesaid, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each grantee (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. Any further grant of options in excess of the limit
shall be subject to shareholders’ approval with such grantee and his
associates abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under the 2012 EE Scheme
is determined by the board of directors of the Company and shall
end on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the options. At the time of grant of the share options, the
Company must (a) specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which
a share option must be held before it can be exercised in whole or
in part, and (b) specify the minimum performance target(s), if any,
which must be achieved before the share options can be exercised
in whole or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of an offer
for grant of share options is HK$1.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option of the
2012 El Scheme shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of
offer; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of offer; and (jii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer.

No share options were granted under the 2012 EI Scheme or
exercised during both years.

Easyknit Enterprises

On 6 June 2002, a share option scheme (the “2002 EE Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of Easyknit Enterprises. The
2002 EE Scheme, which is valid for a period of 10 years, was
terminated on 22 June 2012. On 29 June 2012, a new share option
scheme (the “2012 EE Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders
of Easyknit Enterprises. Under the terms of the 2012 EE Scheme,
the board of directors of Easyknit Enterprises may, at its absolute
discretion, offer options to any full-time employee, director or
consultant of any member of the EE Group (including associated
companies) to subscribe for shares in Easyknit Enterprises subject
to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. The 2012 EE Scheme
is valid during the period of 10 years commencing 29 June 2012,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended.
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

144

Easyknit Enterprises (Continued)

The purposes of the 2012 EE Scheme are to encourage eligible
participants to work towards enhancing the value of Easyknit
Enterprises and its shares for the benefit of Easyknit Enterprises and
its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under
the 2012 EE Scheme must not (when aggregate with any shares
to be issued under any other share option schemes of Easyknit
Enterprises) exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
adoption of the 2012 EE Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible participant of the 2012 EE
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares
of Easyknit Enterprises in issue. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting of Easyknit Enterprises with such grantee and his
associate(s) abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under the 2012 EE Scheme
is determined by the board of directors of Easyknit Enterprises and
shall end on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date
of grant of the options. At the time of grant of the share options,
Easyknit Enterprises must (a) specify the minimum period(s), if any,
for which a share option must be held before it can be exercised in
whole or in part, and (b) specify the minimum performance target(s),
if any, which must be achieved before the share options can be
exercised in whole or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of
an offer for grant of share options is HK$1.

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the 2012 EE
Scheme may be determined by the board of directors of Easyknit
Enterprises in its absolute discretion and notified to each offeree but
may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of Easyknit
Enterprises’ shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of offer, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of Easyknit
Enterprises’ shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Easyknit Enterprises’ shares on the date of offer.

No share options were granted under the 2012 EE Scheme or
exercised during both years.
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. FEMBARZFHE

20153 A31H N&2014F3A31H ' &NA A
FEMBARZFBOT:

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Place of Proportion of nominal

incorporation/ Nominal value value of issued share capital/

establishment of issued share/ registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital indirectly by the Company Principal activities

ARRBEEE

BRRL,/ KL BB/ BRTRA/

WEAREH REEHE SMRAEE HMRAEEL S TEEH
2015 2014
Chancemore Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 40.96% 36.27% Property investment
Hong Kong

REERES/EE  TARIET NERE
City China International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 40.96% 36.27% Finance company
HABEBRERAR D LRBEVET BELA
Clever Wise Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 40.96% 36.27%  Property investment

Hong Kong
BEZRERAR RBAAHS/BE  LERIER NERE
Day Glory Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100% Property investment
AEREFRRA Tk BHEK10,0008 7T NERE
Easy Garment International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 40.96% - Trading of garments
RERKERBRAR Bk EIRMR10,0005 T RKEE
Easyknit Enterprises Bermuda Ordinary HK$253,200 40.96% 36.27% Investment holding
(2014: HK$2,965,959)
KEBE aRE T 253,200 7T RERR
(20147 : 2,965,959
BT

Easyknit Properties Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property management
XEMEERERAR Tk B1EK10,0008 7 NEER
Easyknit Worldwide Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 40.96% 36.27%  Trading of garments

B ERR2 BT RKEE
Everjet Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% - Property investment
KEREBBRAA Tk BERIAT NERE
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 40.96% 36.27% Investment in securities
KEBBRAR Bk EER2ET EHEF

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFREE G R A 7
Annual Report 2014/15 £

145



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
HmEMBHRRMEE o)

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B E2015F3H31 8 1-FE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 30. TEMMWAEZEE (&)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share capital/
registered capital held

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Nominal value
of issued share/

Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital indirectly by the Company Principal activities
ARRMERE
EMAL/ B BR#f7/ BREIRE/
WEAR AR REEHE AMBRAREE SR AEE LS TEEH
2015 2014
Gold Asset Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% - Property development
SEREBRAA Tk EERIET NEER
Goldchamp International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Property investment
tHEERERRA Bk ERRET NERE
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Property investment
BEEXERAR Tk LEmosT NERE
Grow Well Profits Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
Singapore
RBALES/HIR EERIEL NERE
Hansford International Investment Limited ~ British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property investment
Hong Kong
EEERREBRAF RBRAHS/BE  LERER NERE
Happy Light Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property development
Hong Kong
REREARLA KBRLHE/BE  LERIER MEER
Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Property investment
RBEXERRA Bk ERRET NERE
Land Bloom Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 40.96% 36.27% Investment in securities
Hong Kong
REZREB AR RBRAHS/BF  LERER EHRE
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 40.96% 36.27% Property investment
RRCEERAA Bk EERIZT NERE
Mark Profit Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Property investment and
investment in securities
ERERARAT Bk LRk NERERESRE

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE G R 2 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 30. TEMMAEZFE (&)

Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Nominal value value of issued share capital/
establishment of issued share/ registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital indirectly by the Company Principal activities
ARRMERE
BMAL/ B BR#f7/ BRITRE/
WEAR AR REEHE SMBRAEE SR AEE LS TEEH
2015 2014
On Channel International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100% Property investment
ZERRARLA Tk B1E%10,0008 7 NERE
Planetic International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Finance company
BE EERET RWERA
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 40.96% 36.27% Property investment
HERORARARF Tk EERIAL NERE
Total Expect Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
Hong Kong
KBRAHE/BE  LBERIER ESHES
Trump Elegant Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
JEREBRAT Tk LRRIET NEER
Well Honest Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100% Property investment
EHREBRRA Bk EIR10,0008 T NERE
Wellmake Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,998 100% 100%  Property investment
(Non-voting deferred
HK$2)*
BEREBRARA BE HiBIR9,9987E T NERE
(BERERELER
287
Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) Co., Ltd. PRC Registered 40.96% 36.27% Property investment

(“Enterprises Huzhou')™* US$25,544,206
KXEBE I BRAR (DEMEED > $E RaliheN
25,544,206 %7T

NERE

Y BRERBERARZERFEETENE
BWBERBRRAS 28BS HEHR

The non-voting deferred shares of Wellmake Investments Limited
carry no rights to receive notice of, attend or vote at any general
meeting and have very limited rights to participate in a distribution AELRE AEEIEEERENES
of profits and, on liquidation, to the repayment of the amount paid s M RN ERFERDEERNH S
up on the shares. HHo

* o PN EER—BRTEKIZ2EINE
WE R & HIRE0GF - B £2054F
12H148 -

= Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in the PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14
December 2054.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B E201543831 AL F R

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

148

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company result in particulars of
excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority of these
subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of these
subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities Principal place of business

FEHEK FEZEMEY
Investment holding Hong Kong
TEER B
Inactive Hong Kong
FEVE BB BH
Inactive PRC

13747 e

39.

TEWMBARZHE (&)

A EPIRFAIIRZ NA BB AR BARR
REEZER TEXEFRAZEELBK
AEBBEZTZHMO -MEFZEARE
REEMBHBARZFHE S<IFFER
ke

RIEEF - AARME R H A EEH S
RREBZHEAT  UEHEANADH
REBLEB- WEWBAR Y T ELBHE
-

Number of subsidiaries

MEARHA
2015 2014
14 13
6 7
2 2
22 22

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31 March
2015 or 31 March 2014.

The table below shows details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group that has material non-controlling interests.

BN B 2 5 7A2015F3 A31 H k20143 A
STABITE(IEEES -

TRAREE M2 EMBRARZFHE
HEB AR

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting
Principal place rights held by non- Profit allocated to Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary of business controlling interests non-controlling interests controlling interests
FEREREE FiERER
WEAREHE TEQEHE BERREEZLA 2DRF R FERER
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET
Easyknit Enterprises Hong Kong
XEEE £ 59.04% 63.73% 19,739 4,099 922,585 715,748
Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE G R 2 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B 220153431 HiF F &
39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. FEMBLRAZFHE (&)

Easyknit Enterprises is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s
shareholding of Easyknit Enterprises increased from 36.27% to
40.96% during the year ended 31 March 2015. The directors of the
Company have considered all relevant facts and circumstances,
including the Group’s dominant voting interest relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders, participation
rates of shareholders and voting patterns in previous shareholders’
meetings, related to the Group’s interests in EE Group during the
year ended 31 March 2015 and are of the opinion that the Group
maintained control over EE Group during the year.

Summarised financial information in respect of Easyknit Enterprises
that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The
amounts represent financial information obtained from the published
results announcement of Easyknit Enterprises.

Non-current assets IERBEE
Current assets MBEE
Non-current liabilities EmBAasE
Current liabilities mEaE

Equity attributable to owners of
Easyknit Enterprises

Proportion of ownership interests held by
non-controlling interests of Easyknit
Enterprises

at]]

Equity interest of Easyknit Enterprises
attributable to non-controlling interests
of Easyknit Enterprises

PR A

KEEEBRRELES

KEEERE T £ - RE E2015F3A
INBUEFE FAEERKREEZFRE
36.27%3 11 Z240.96% ° FAE, Z=2015%3 A31
HLEFE ARRESCZEMBRAUEER
RER EPRREASERKEBE IR
M2 IRE RS EMREREEE A ZRE
IRIEDERE RNBERREAS ERFELF
ERFEFN - HMRBRARFERNAEE 4R
HABRBEER 2 TG

KB ERAE AR 2 AR
EHINWT - HESHEINKEEE DT
B ERBDMERZHEER -

KEEFRFERESH AN EHES

KEEFRFIEBRRSREKERERXL

At At
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
201545 20144
34318 3A31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
953,799 657,313
965,382 732,189
(177,215) (229,230)
(179,321) (37,178)
1,562,645 1,123,094
59.04% 63.73%
922,585 715,748

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)
A EmRMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B E201543831 AL F R

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

39. FEMBARZFHE (&)

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue ] 192,489 156,940
Expenses and costs & R AR (161,403) (159,481)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to KEEEREREG
owners of Easyknit Enterprises REE & (E5E) 31,086 (2,541)
Other comprehensive expense for KEBFEZRFEMN
the year attributable to owners of REFHMPEMS
Easyknit Enterprises 43 (932)
Total comprehensive income (expense) KEBEEZRREN
for the year attributable to owners of REEEEBA (FZ)BE
Easyknit Enterprises 31,129 (3,473)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating K B4 & EE) ~
activities WERA Rt ) F88 30,013 (4,579)
Net cash outflow from investing activities 2R 5% & E8) 2 IR & 7 HF5E (900,336) (62,205)
Net cash inflow from financing activities REMEEER Z2HERAFE 484,971 378,970
Net cash (outflow) inflow e ORH)RAFR (385,352) 312,186

40. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31 March
2015:

0)

(i)

150

On 18 March 2015, EE Group entered into ten sets of
provisional agreements with independent third parties to
acquire investment properties in Hong Kong for an aggregate
consideration of HK$183,000,000. The acquisition was
approved by the shareholders of Easyknit Enterprises in a
special general meeting held on 11 May 2015. Details of which
are set out in Easyknit Enterprises’s announcement dated on
19 March 2015.

On 26 May 2015, EE Group entered into a facility letter with
an independent third party to lend up to HK$70,000,000 for
a period of twelve months from the drawdown date. The
borrower shall pay interest to the lender on the loan at the
rate of 8% per annum. The loan is secured by the share
charge and personal guarantee. Details of which are set out in
Easyknit Enterprises’s announcement dated on 26 May 2015.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE G R 2 7
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40. MEPRKEE

AT A2015F3A31H B A 2 EREIE:

)

72015435180 'k & B ¥ £ H 5
S EZ AN TR LWERE
183,000,000/ TTHIBEL R BB Z W E
W o U BE B 20155 A1 B 8172
BRRFRIAS RS KETE ZREL
Ko BRAFBHN KEETEAHA2015
FIF19B 2 Ao

R2015F5826H kBB £ EFHE —
BN FE AN IRHERBNE F
= & 1 & %70,000,000/8 7T e EL B
BRRET A+ @A - (ERABIREF
8% X ERMERAZHFE
BB REAERIEAER
BRI BHNAKEE XA A201555
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

e BHRRMEE o)

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

40. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(i)

(iv)

On 29 May 2015, EE Group entered into a subscription
agreement in respect of the issue of and subscription
for convertible note in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$86,000,000 with an independent third party.

Assuming full conversion of the convertible note at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.85 per share, a total of 101,176,470
new shares will be allotted and issued, representing (i)
approximately 19.03% of the issued share capital of Easyknit
Enterprises as at the date of announcing the issue of
convertible note; and (i) approximately 15.99% of the issued
share capital of Easyknit Enterprises as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the conversion shares.

Upon the full exercise of the conversion rights attached to
the convertible note, there will have the effect of diluting
all existing Easyknit Enterprises shareholders’ percentage
shareholdings in Easyknit Enterprises. So far as the Company
is concerned, its percentage share of the issued share capital
of Easyknit Enterprises will be diluted approximately from
40.96% to approximately 34.41%.

Accordingly, Easyknit Enterprises will no longer be a subsidiary
of the Company and its financial position and results will not
be consolidated. Easyknit Enterprises will be accounted for
as an associate of the Group. Details of which are set out in
Easyknit Enterprises announcement dated on 29 May 2015.

On 10 June 2015, the Group entered into a loan agreement
as lender with an independent third party to lend
HK$185,000,000 for a period of twelve months. The borrower
shall pay interest to the lender on the loan at the rate of 17%
per annum. The loan is secured by share charge and personal
guarantees. Details of which are set out in the Company’s
announcement date on 10 June 2015.

Subsequent to 31 March 2015, the Group disposed on-
market certain equity securities, including the listed shares
of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The
People’s Insurance Company (Group) of China Limited, which
constitute a major transaction and a discloseable transaction
respectively pursuant to the Listing Rules. Details of which are
set out in the Company’s announcements date on 15 June
2015 and 17 June 2015.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE AR A T

40. #HE

(i)

(iv)

HIR®BER (F)

I

R2015F5H29H kK EE X EEH B —
BB EZ A RBETRREARSERES
86,000,00078 JT Ay AJ R A IR AT SRR
e

RERIE VIR IR E TR AR 0.8578 L&
IR R - AR R ETT
4 101,176,470 5T A% 17+ 4B E 57 ()oK
BREERNDHBTRBREEASHZE
BEITAR AR #919.03% [ (i) k3 B A
BRBITHBIRGERE Z BEITRA
#715.99% o

REBEEITE TR ERNE 2 X0
% BEAMBERBEXKEEERERK
EEEEREILEREETYE
MARBME EDhXKEETEEE
TTIEANE 9 L A5 R 4940.96 % #58 = 49
34.41% °

At kEBBEHTBR/ARE ZHE
REAIREMBRAREEBTEHEE
AR KBZBESARIN AN EE 2B
ERE-BEABENKEEXANR
201565290 2 R fff »

720156 108 ' NEE A E XA 6
—BBAE=ZHENEERE  RERE
185,000,000/ 70 AHEi+ @A - (&
RABIREFNT% 2 R ERAE K
AZ A FE o« B FRAR D 50 M B A ¥
RIEBIEIF - BHEFBEN A2 A A H
A201556 4108 2 Ao

2015F3A318#%& A BN A AH™H
HEETEERGREENMBRAA
FHrBRARRBEBRRGERAAZ
EmESH REETRAUDIEKAE
ERXGRABTEERS BEFBEHR
A7) B E 520156 5158 20154
6H17H Z A e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

e BRI o)

For the year ended 31 March 2015

B E201543831 AL F R
41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY RATZHBMRRE
2015 2014
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FETT F&ET
Non-current assets EMEEE
Interests in subsidiaries BB AR 1,424,288 1,403,057
Deposit and prepayments for a life ASREZ RS RFBRAK
insurance policy 21 9,901 9,805
1,434,189 1,412,862
Current assets MENBE
Other receivables H b fE A 495 413
Bank balances and cash RITEHRKIRE 154,537 1,939
155,032 2,352
Current liabilities mEAaE
Other payables H M ERFIR 1,153 781
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTBT B A Al F I8 192,453 188,554
193,606 189,335
Net current liabilities REBEFE (38,574) (186,983)
Net assets BEFE 1,395,615 1,225,879
Capital and reserves BEARKEE
Share capital A& A 30 7,942 7,942
Reserves (Note) s (AaE) 1,387,673 1,217,937
Equity attributable to owners RAFRRE
of the Company bR 1,395,615 1,225,879

1 5 2 Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEE G R 2 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continueq)

e BHRRMEE o)

For the year ended 31 March 2015
B 22015F3H31H 1L FE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Note:  Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and

the prior years are as follows:

At 1 April 2013

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year
Dividends

At 31 March 2014

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year
Dividends

At 31 March 2015

201354 418
FERBERR

EHRAXER
B8

12014537318
REREMR

EHRAER
BB

7% 201563 A31H

M. KPR ZHMBERRE (&)

Hat: ARRZEENFARBEIFEZE

m
Share Capital Contributed ~ Accumulated

premium reserve surplus profits Total
R EE EXGE AR R EA wE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$000
FET FET FET FAET FET
218,330 196,565 220,937 854,438 1,490,270
- - - (240,565) (240,565)
- - - (31,768) (31,768)
- - - (272,333) (272,333)
218,330 196,565 220,937 582,105 1,217,937
- - - 177,678 177,678

- - - (7,942) (7,942)

- - - 169,736 169,736
218,330 196,565 220,937 751,841 1,387,673

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE AR A T
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Financial Summary

MBERBRE

RESULTS E 3

Year ended 31 March

HE3AMMALEE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr FEr FET FET
Turnover BEE 39,986 203,583 524,398 275,757 649,475
Profit before taxation B 75 A A 438,816 110,610 647,471 23,836 243,569
Taxation Fi| (49,505) (2,934) (1,723) (6,701) (20,963)
389,311 107,676 645,748 17,135 222,606
Profit (loss) for the year JEIEAFEE R T
attributable to: (EE) :
- owners of the Company B YNGILE 389,311 101,181 647,022 13,036 202,867
- non-controlling interests — RS - 6,495 (1,274) 4,099 19,739
389,311 107,676 645,748 17,135 222,606
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
At 31 March
M3A31AH
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 2,162,765 2,922,403 4,057,287 5,283,049 5,583,588
Total liabilities BAR (200,134) (493,544) (855,363) (1,838,784) (1,688,789)
Net assets BEFE 1,962,631 2,428,859 3,201,924 3,444,265 3,894,799
Equity attributable to owners A2 B &R
of the Company (R 1,962,631 2,260,743 2,751,362 2,728,517 2,972,214
Non-controlling interests PR R = 168,116 450,562 715,748 922,585
1,962,631 2,428,859 3,201,924 3,444,265 3,894,799

Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEFEEE AR A 7
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Summary of Properties

Y =R

At 31 March 2015
HK2015%3H31H

A.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

bk

Sixth Floor, Nos. 650-652
Castle Peak Road, and

No. 18A Wing Hong Street,
Kowloon

ah-

FllE

650 — 65257 * 612

K ERAT18A5R

Second Floor, Nos. 790, 792 and 794

Cheung Sha Wan Road,
Kowloon

JEE

Y

79055 - 7925% } 794557 21%

Block B1 and portion of Block B
on Seventh Floor,

No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NERDES LE4815

7IE 2 B1E KBRS

Unit B on First Floor,

Fung Wah Factory Building,

Nos. 646, 648, 648A

Castle Peak Road, Kowloon
JLBE S LL3B64657 - 6485% &
B4BASR BET X X E—ET5B

Roof, No. 20 Wing Hong Street,
Kowloon
MK EH209 KA

Purpose

J5:E:S

Industrial

I

Industrial

I%

Industrial

I

Industrial

I

Industrial

I

A.

REWE
Approximate

gross floor/
saleable area
WAEE,
BEAEE

(sq. ft.)
(FAR)

8,514

2,997

6,992

1,937

2,657

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE G R A 7
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Lease term

B FH
Medium
Gk
Medium
A
Medium

A

Medium
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Summary of Properties (ontinued)

At 31 March 2015

R2015F3H31H
A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) A.
Location Purpose
i 1k A%
6.  Fifth Floor, Industrial
No. 20 Wing Hong Street,
Kowloon
TEEK 205, A ig I%
7. Easy Tower Industrial/
No. 609 Tai Nan West Street, commercial
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NERDE I %
K 7 78 476095
K& ES
8. Shops 1, 2, 3 on Ground Floor Commercial

together with showcase on

Ground Floor, First Floor

and Second Floor of Fa Yuen Plaza,

No. 19 Fa Yuen Street,

Mong Kok, Kowloon

N A EES
TEEE19%

TEEEB T -2 SRR T

BE - — R 2

9.  Ground Floor, No. 50 Yun Ping Road, Commercial
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BEAWEE [EES
B FES05R M T

10. House 9, Villa Castell, Residential

No. 20 Yau King Lane,
Tai Po, New Territories
TR E T E205 32 1L AE95 F 5 *=

Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEFEEE AR A 7
1 5 6 Annual Report 2014/15 4F &

REME (

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
WHEE,
BEAEE

(sq. ft.)
(FAR)

2,637

74,458

13,544

900

2,358

Lease term

B FH

Medium

ik

Medium

A

Medium

Gk

Long

K

Medium
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Summary of Properties (ontinued)
MEBE »)
At 31 March 2015
R2015F3H31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Location

bk

Units 1 and 2 on Seventh Floor,
Block D and Car Parking Space
No. 46 on Lower Ground Floor,
Shatin Heights,

No. 8003 Tai Po Road,

Shatin, New Territories

¥ 5 B K3 2 B8 800355

7 B e B DR 12155 F25% B8 7 )z
K/EH# T ERL

E

Third Floor,

No. 161 Wong Nai Chung Road,
Hong Kong

HREFERRBEI6 =12

15 Ardmore Park #04-03,
Singapore 259959

15 Ardmore Park #04-03
#7N#%259959

15 Ardmore Park #06-04,
Singapore 259959

15 Ardmore Park #06-04
¥ IN34259959

15 Ardmore Park #18-02,
Singapore 259959

15 Ardmore Park #18-02
#1N%259959

Purpose

J5:E:S

Residential

Residential

F=
Residential

£

Residential

=

F=

Residential

£

Easyknit International Holdings Limited K ZEIFEEBE G R A 7
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A.

REME (

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
WAEE,
BEAEE

(sq. ft.)
(FAR)

2,086

781

2,885

2,885

2,885

Lease term

B FH

Medium

Gib

Medium

A ER
Freehold

%M

Freehold

]

Freehold

%M

&7



Summary of Properties (ontinued)

At 31 March 2015
H2015%3H31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

16.

17

18.

19.

20.

158

Location

bk

Shops A and B on Ground Floor
and Shop C on First Floor, One Victory,
Nos. 1, 1A and 3 Victory Avenue,
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
BEfA ST H B FIE15% - 1A% 235
P I 78155 30 T AR B )k — 2 CHf

Ground Floor,

No. 148 Johnston Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BBEBFHELTICE 148 T

Ground Floor and Cockloft,

No. 13 Matheson Street,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

BB RS )3 B 1355 T R EE

Ground Floor - Fifth Floors,
No. 15 Matheson Street,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BEMBE7E 155 T — 518

Ground Floor, No. 6 Cannon Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BB MBEEREGRM T

Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEIFEEE G R A 7
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Purpose

J5E:S

Commercial

CES

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

CES

Commercial/
residential

B MEE
Commercial

GES

REWE (8)

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
WHEE,
BEAEE

(sq. ft.)
(FAR)

5,181

580

1,232

4,440

472

Lease term

B FH

Medium

Gk

Long

=H

Long

=&

Long

=
Long

=



Summary of Properties (ontinued)
MEBE »)

At 31 March 2015

R20154F3/31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Location Purpose
hHk Az
21. Flat A on eleventh floor, Residential

One Victory, Nos. 1, 1A and 3
Victory Avenue, Ho Man Tin,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

B ST H B FIE 5% - 1A% 235 =
FEs ) 1 557
T+ —1EAENL
22. Two parcels of land at an Industrial

industrial site located at the

South of Hengtang Harbour,

the West of Dongliang Road,

Zhili Town, Wuxing District,

Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province

of the People’s Republic of China

with a total of twelve building blocks
being built

MBERIERM Y iR I
R E AR EMBENNTA AN TR EE
B BIRREIAT

TS AR

BB+ RETREEZBEY

A.

REWE (£)

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
WHEE,
BEAEE

(sq. ft.)
(FAR)

883

1,805,534
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Lease term

HANFEH
Medium
HHER

Medium

Gk
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Summary of Properties (continued)

MEBE 2

At 31 March 2015
K2015%3H31H

B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

160

Location

4t

Blocks A, B and D on Ground Floor,
Blocks A, B and D on First Floor,
Blocks A, B and D on Second Floor,
Nos. 301, 301A - C Prince Edward
Road West, Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
MBI X HAFEFE3015%

301A — C¥

#NABRDEE -

—#2A BKDEE

ZIEA -BKDEE

Nos. 14-16 Inverness Road,

Kowloon Tong, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BENENERTEVELE 147169

Nos. 18-20 Inverness Road,

Kowloon Tong, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BENENERITEETB18% 205

Purpose

R#&

Residential

Residential

e

Residential

Approximate
gross site area

BHEHE
(sq. ft)
(F75)

8,736

8,442

7,060

B.

Easyknit International Holdings Limited kK ZEFEEE AR A 7
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BEHERRYE
Percentage
of interest Lease term

BHEEIL ROFH

75% Long
R

100% Medium
ki

100% Medium
FH]

Stage of completion

5T AR B

Under development

BRH

Under development

ERS

Under development

ZRH
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